
 

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF NORTH DAKOTA 
 

Kelly Armstrong Drew H. Wrigley Doug Goehring 
Governor Attorney General Agriculture Commissioner 

 

   
 

                                                                                                                            
Thursday, April 24, 2025 

Governor’s Conference Room or Microsoft Teams – 12:30 pm 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Join the meeting now 
Or call in (audio only) 

+1 701-328-0950,,230948206# 
 

I. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
(approximately 12:35 pm) 
 

II. North Dakota Public Finance Authority – DeAnn Ament  
A. Consideration of Approval of the Following State Revolving Fund 

Loans: 
i. East Central Regional Water District – Drinking Water - $8,554,000 

(Attachment 1A-F) 
ii. City of Mandan – Drinking Water - $4,507,000 (Attachment 2A-F) 

B. Presentation of Memo from NDPFA Advisory Committee Regarding SRF 
Loans Approved Under Policy P-3B (Attachment 3) 

i. City of Ashley – Clean Water - $461,000 (Attachment 3A) 
ii. City of Colfax – Clean Water - $1,251,000 (Attachment 3B) 
iii. City of Colfax – Clean Water - $1,072,000 (Attachment 3C) 
iv. City of Mandan – Drinking Water - $1,930,000 (Attachment 3D) 
v. City of Portland – Drinking Water - $1,930,000 (Attachment 3E)  

C. Legislative Update (Attachment 4) 
D. Other NDPFA Business 

 
(approximately 12:45 pm) 
 

III. Department of Mineral Resources – Nathan Anderson, Mark Bohrer 
A. Consideration of Approval of Recommended Order in the Following 

Case: 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTRlMjQ2YjItYjkzMy00M2YyLTllNGUtNmY5NWZjOGZkMGY5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222dea0464-da51-4a88-bae2-b3db94bc0c54%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%228e72a328-2f85-4d6e-af4a-b0571931df82%22%7d
tel:+17013280950,,230948206


 
Industrial Commission Agenda 
Page 2 
April 24, 2025 
 

   
 

i. Order 33526 in Case No. 30866 – North Dakota Industrial 
Commission v. Sakakawea Ventures, LLC Administrative Complaint, 
Imposition of Civil Penalties and Recovery of Investigative Costs 
(Attachment 5) 

B. Discussion of Temporary Waiver of Well Completion Requirement 
(Attachment 6) 

C. Legislative Update  
D. Other DMR Business 

 
(approximately 1:15 pm) 
 

IV. North Dakota Pipeline Authority – Justin Kringstad 
A. Overview of NDPA’s Pipeline Project Capacity Acquisition Authority 

(Attachment 7) 
B. Other NDPA Business 

 
(approximately 1:30 pm) 

V. Bank of North Dakota – Don Morgan 
A. Presentation and Consideration of Approval of BND Smart Plan – Don 

Morgan (Attachment 8A-D) 
B. Legislative Update  
C. Presentation of February 19 and 20, 2025 Non-confidential Advisory Board 

and Committee Minutes (Attachment 9) 
D. Other BND Business 

 
Meeting Closed to the Public for Executive Session Pursuant to NDCC 

6-09-35 and 44-04-19.2 
 
(approximately 2:15pm) 

VI. Bank of North Dakota Executive Session – Don Morgan, Craig Hanson  
A. Consideration of Approval of Four Loans – Don Morgan (Confidential 

Attachments 10, 11) 
B. Presentation of February 19 and 20, 2025 Confidential Advisory Board and 

Committee Minutes (Confidential Attachment 12) 
 

 
Meeting Returns to Open Session 

 
(approximately 3:00 pm) 



 
Industrial Commission Agenda 
Page 3 
April 24, 2025 
 

   
 

 
VII. Executive Session Actions 

 
VIII. Office of the Industrial Commission – Karen Tyler, Jordan Kannianen  

A. Consideration of March 25, 2025, Industrial Commission Meeting 
Minutes (Attachment 13) 

B. Consideration of Approval of Interview Committee for Housing 
Finance Agency Executive Director (Attachment 14) 

C. Legislative Update (Attachment 15) 
D. Other Office of Industrial Commission business  

  
IX. Adjournment  

 
Next Meeting – Thursday, May 22, 2025 

10:00 am – 12:00 pm 
1:00 pm – 4:00 pm 

Governor’s Conference Room 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 April 16, 2025 
 
 PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
 RECOMMENDATION TO THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION 
 
 
The Advisory Committee, at its April 16, 2025 meeting, reviewed, discussed, and 
recommends approval of a $8,554,000 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program loan 
to the East Central Regional Water District. 
 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 
Advisory Committee 

 
Keith Lund, Chairman 

Linda Svihovec 
John Phillips 
 

Attachment 1B 



 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 
(701) 328-7100 

 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
        

To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
 Miles Silbert, Public Financial Management 
 Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 
 
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
 
Date:    March 31, 2025 
 
Re:  East Central Regional Water District 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan  
 
 
Purpose of the Project:  Expand the drinking water treatment capacity at the City of Hillsboro 
water treatment plant. This project will provide iron and manganese removal through filtration 
and reverse osmosis technology.  

 
Project Amount: 

  
 

 
 
Users to Benefit from the Project: 21,076 
Users Served by the System: 3,659 connections plus 11 municipal and 1 water district with a 
total population of 8,092 
 
The requested loan term is 30 years. The District will issue revenue bonds payable with user fees 
for this loan. The average annual payment on the net $5,714,000 DWSRF loan will be $244,656. 
The required debt service reserve is $253,750 and the 110% net operating coverage requirement 
is $269,122.  
 
The District encompasses the southern half of Grand Forks County, Traill County and eastern 
Steele County and provides water services to 3,568 residential connections and 43 bulk users 
including Agassiz Water Users District as well as the Cities of Grandin, Mayville, Clifford, 
Hillsboro, Portland, Arvilla, Emerado, Hatton, Larimore and Northwood as well as Climax, MN. 
 

DWSRF Request $ 8,554,000 
DWSRF Loan Forgiveness  ( 2,840,000) 
DWSRF Net Loan $ 5,714,000 

DWSRF Request $  8,554,000 
DWR Cost-Share   17,140,837 
EC in SDC Grant     8,305,550 
Project Total $34,000,387  

Attachment 1C 

http://www.nd.gov/pfa


User Connections: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Monthly Base Rates:    
                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The volume use charge is $8/1,000 gallons.  
 
 
 
Net Operating Coverage: 
  

         Unaudited 
  2021 2022 2023 2024 
Interest Revenue  $24,925 $23,410 $71,819 $8,580 
Operating Revenue  4,479,051 4,896,960 5,083,480 5,355,046 
Operating Expenses  3,805,188 4,415,772 5,229,246 3,311,841 
Net Operating Revenue  698,788 504,598 -73,947 2,051,785 
Depreciation  974,639 $1,201,556 $1,387,290 $- 
Adjusted Net Operating Revenue  $1,673,427 $1,706,154 $1,313,343 $2,051,785 
Bond Payments  $765,199 $687,710 $918,534 $908,985 
Net Operating Coverage  219% 248% 143% 226% 
Proforma DWSRF Payments     $244,656 
Proforma Net Operating Coverage     178% 

      
 
Existing net operating revenue will be sufficient to meet the 110% net operating coverage 
requirement. 
 
 

    Projected 
 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Residential 3,597 3,659 3,659 3,689 3,869 
Bulk/Municipal 45 43 43 44 44 

    Projected 
 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Traill Rural Water District $60.00 $60.00 $63.00 $65.00 $65.00 
Grand Forks Traill Water District $40.00 $40.00 $42.00 $44.00 $44.00 



 
Total outstanding debt of as of December 31, 2024: 
 

   Original     Outstanding  
      Debt            Debt             

Revenue Bonds                 $   2,988,000 $  1,802,080  
NDPFA Revenue Bonds 1      22,878,674     7,929,243  
Totals      $ 25,866,674 $  9,731,323 

 
1 Payments to the NDPFA have been made as agreed. The District has five Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund loans with a total outstanding balance of $7,929,273.  
 
 
The largest employers in the District are American Crystal Sugar which employs 350, Mayville 
State University with 240 employees and Sandford Health has 177 employees. 
 
 
District Population: 

   
2020 2010 2000 

81,114 75,098 74,476 
 
 
 
School Enrollment: 
 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 
3,076 3,133 3,188 3,193 3,208 

 
 



45 South 7th Street 
Suite 2950 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 

Memorandum 
TO: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

DATE: April 14, 2025 

RE: Marketplace Analysis - Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 
   East Central Regional Water District  

The East Central Regional Water District (“District”) has presented a request to the Authority and 
the North Dakota Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $8,554,000 loan of 
which $2,840,000 will be loan forgiveness for a total net loan of $5,714,000 under the Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund Program (“DWSRF Program”).  The DWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various water 
treatment, distribution, and storage facilities as approved by the Department in accordance with 
federal and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 

The District intends to use the proceeds to expand the drinking water treatment capacity at the City 
of Hillsboro water treatment plant to provide iron and manganese removal through filtration and 
reverse osmosis technology.   

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be revenue bonds payable with water 
user fees.  The District’s average annual payment under the proposed loan will be approximately 
$244,656 indicating a 110% net revenue coverage requirement of approximately $269,122.  The 
District will be required to deposit $253,750 into a reserve fund with payments of $50,750 per year 
for the first five years of the loan.  Net operating coverage of the Water Fund was 2.19x, 2.48x, 
1.43x and 2.26x for 2021-2024, respectively.  The existing net operating revenues will provide 
sufficient coverage to meet the 110% coverage requirement. 

As of December 31, 2024, the District has outstanding Revenue Bonds of $1,802,080. The District 
currently has five Drinking Water SRF loans outstanding with a balance of $7,929,243.  The District 
is current in its payments for its outstanding Authority loans. 

Funding for the construction of the District's projects has been included in a list of approved projects 
as prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the DWSRF Program, 
the District will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the DWSRF Program. 

Attachment 1D



Memorandum 

To: Industrial Commission 

From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 
Bank of North Dakota 

Date: April 1, 2025 

RE: East Central Regional Water District 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 

ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$8,554,000 loan to East Central Regional Water District under the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
(DWSRF). This project is eligible for $2,840,000 of DWSRF loan forgiveness, making the net loan 
$5,714,000. The total cost of the project is $34,000,387, with $17,140,837 coming from a Department of 
Water Resources grant and $8,305,550 coming from an EPA Emerging Contaminants in Small and 
Disadvantaged Communities grant. 

The project will expand the water treatment capacity at the City of Hillsboro water treatment plant. The 
requested loan term is 30 years. The District will issue revenue bonds payable from user fees. The 
annual payment will average $244,646. 

Debt Service Coverage: 

2021 2022 2023 Projected
Operating Revenue 4,479,051 4,896,960 5,083,480 5,355,046
Interest Revenue 24,925 23,410 71,819 8,580
Operating Expenses -3,805,188 -4,415,772 -5,229,246 -3,311,841
Net Operating Revenue 698,788 504,598 -73,947 2,051,785
Add: Depreciation 974,639 1,201,556 1,387,290 0
Adjusted Operating Income 1,673,427 1,706,154 1,313,343 2,051,785

Current Debt Service 765,199 687,710 918,534 908,985
Proposed Debt Service 244,656
Current Debt Service 765,199 687,710 918,534 1,153,641

Debt Service Coverage 218.69% 248.09% 142.98% 177.85%

Attachment 1E



Currently, Traill Rural Water District users pay a monthly base rate of $63.00 and Grand Forks Traill 
Water District users pay a monthly base rate of $42.00. The volume charge for all users is $8.00 per 
1,000 gallons. The existing user fees will generate sufficient net operating revenues to service both the 
new and existing debt. 

Outstanding Debt (as of December 31, 2024): 

Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $1,153,641, which is an average of $54.74 
per resident of the District. 

The District currently serves 3,659 residential connections and 43 bulk users, including Agassiz Water 
Users District, and the Cities of Grandin, Galesburg, Mayville, Clifford, Hillsboro, Portland, Arvilla, 
Emerado, Hatton, Larimore, Northwood and Climax, MN. The District encompasses southern Grand 
Forks County, Traill County and eastern Steele County. The District’s estimated population is 21,076. 

Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with 
their evaluation and support of the request. 

_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 

Original
Amount

Amount
Outstanding

PFA Revenue Bonds $22,878,674 $7,929,243
Other Revenue Bonds 2,988,000 1,802,080

$25,866,674 $9,731,323



eel e 

fill 

I 
"l. 

_/. 

,.942/t 

C 

< 
) 

' 

0
Larimore } 

'-·'----.r-----1 
.

I 

I I 

...... -t I 
' 

, I l···r······+···r-r·•t
,.. : 1

' .' 

2 New ECRWD Wells 

rl 

. ' ' 
,-----... + ........ ,., . ' 
' . ' ' -� ... -�·-r···r

t
"' I -

: ... 

--� ,.. .... ..:. ...... �. 
--� ..

:·i ·i 
'•··-1 

--,------------------r---li•iiEli-

1 
I 
I 

''-
v r J

I., I : 
............. "'"""+----1 

� I I 

New 12-inch Raw 

Water Pipeline 

' . 
r··--r·•-r··-· 

t···-··-:-

··-·:J•-'--••:
-·

--1 

\ I 
--�---' 

1600 GPM RO WTP Expansion 

New ECRWD Wells 

New 12" Raw Water Pipeline 

New 8/10" Concentrate Pipeline 

New 20" Potable Water Pipeline 

Existing Well(s) 

ECRWD Transfer Station 

Existing WTP 

••••••••• Existing ECWRD Pipelines 

East Central Regional Water 
District 

� Other Rural Water Districts 

Locator Map Not to Scale 
0 3 6 

Miles 
1 inch equals 6 miles 

\ 

' 
l

Attachment 1F



 
 
 
 
 
 
 April 16, 2025 
 
 PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
 RECOMMENDATION TO THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION 
 
 
The Advisory Committee, at its April 16, 2025 meeting, reviewed, discussed, and 
recommends approval of a $4,507,000 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program loan 
to the City of Mandan. 
 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 
Advisory Committee 

 
Keith Lund, Chairman 

Linda Svihovec 
John Phillips 
 

Attachment 2B 



________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.pfa.nd.gov 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

Memorandum 

To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
Miles Silbert, Public Finance Management 
Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 

From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

Date: April 2, 2025 

Re:  City of Mandan 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan Application 

Purpose of the Project:   Water treatment plant phase III optimization project. 

Project Amount:   

Population to Benefit from the Project: 24,206 
Population Served by the System: 24,206 plus Missouri West Water System which serves 
8,100 people 

The requested term for the DWSRF loan is 20 years. Accordingly, the average annual payment 
loan will be approximately $270,057. The required debt service reserve is $274,050 and the 
110% net operating coverage requirement is $297,063. 

The City currently has 8,615 residential connections that pay a water/wastewater base rate of 
$32.05 and 796 commercial connections that pay a water/wastewater base rate of $64.10 and 
both pay $3.00/100 cubic foot of water usage and $1.65/100 cubic foot of wastewater disposal. 
Effective January 1, 2025, these rates reflect the monthly base rate increase for residential users 
of $4.75 and for commercial users $9.50 which will result in annual revenue of approximately 
$581,799. 

DWSRF Request     $   4,507,000 
DWR Cost Share  6,760,000 
Project Total     $ 11,267,000 

Type text here

Attachment 2C



 
 
Water & Wastewater Fund: 
 
  2020 2021 2022 2023 
Operating Revenue $9,038,542 $12,373,258 $11,710,926 $10,216,792 
Operating Expenses 5,806,222 6,253,921 6,315,164 6,648,226 
Net Operating Revenue 3,232,320 6,119,337 5,395,762 3,568,566 
Depreciation 2,365,212 2,579,500 2,530,360 2,801,245 
Adjusted Net Operating Revenue $5,597,532 $8,698,837 $7,926,122 $6,369,811 
Revenue Bond Payments $2,763,599 $2,704,720 $2,724,636 $2,710,801 
Net Operating Coverage 203% 322% 291% 235% 
Proforma Rate Increase Revenue $581,799 $581,799 $581,799 $581,799 
Proforma DWSRF Payment $590,493 $270,057 $270,057 $270,057 
Proforma Net Operating Coverage 184% 312% 284% 233% 

     
Existing net revenues coupled with the implemented water/wastewater base rate increases should 
allow the City to continue meeting the coverage requirements.  
 
 
Outstanding Debt as of November 4, 2024:  
 Original  Outstanding 

 Debt  Debt 
General Obligation Bonds - Bridge  $               870,000    $         130,000  
Improvement Bonds               61,951,888          48,615,567  
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Sports Complex              15,275,000            9,565,000  
Revenue Bonds - Water & Sewer 1              38,436,239          20,227,605  

Total  $        116,533,127    $    78,538,172  

    
1 Payments to the NDPFA have been made as agreed. The City has eight DWSRF loans with a 
total outstanding balance of $14,847,605 and five Clean Water SRF loans that total $5,305,000. 
The City had debt service reserves of $3,615,306. 
 
The average annual payment of all outstanding debt including this new request is $10,324,824 
which is $427 per resident.  
 
 
The City of Mandan is located in Morton County on Interstate 94. Based on the 2020 census, the 
total population is 24,206; this is an increase of 5,875 over the 2010 census. The largest 
employers in the City are Mandan Public Schools with 697 employees, HIT, Inc. (social 
assistance) employs 641 and NISC (information services) with 460 employees. 
 
 



 
 
K-12 School Enrollment: 
 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 
4,037 4,223 4,277 4,368 4,375 

 
 
 
The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $131,480,934. This is an increase of $32,318,077 over the 
2020 taxable valuation.  
 
 
Property Tax Levies and Collections as of 12/31/2024: 
   
Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $7,888,079 $3,024,747 38% 
2023 $7,939,478 $7,842,807 99% 
2022 $7,223,291 $7,185,035 99% 
2021 $6,608,207 $6,607,326 100% 

 
 
Special Assessment Levies and Collections 12/31/2024: 
  

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $6,737,373 $3,857,291 57% 
2023 $4,541,789 $4,242,323 93% 
2022 $4,602,813 $4,421,783 96% 
2021 $4,625,863 $4,607,694 100% 

 
 
City of Mandan Mill Levy: 
 

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 64.09 128.14 29.15 55.09 4.13 280.60 
2023 63.93 127.22 29.13 56.74 4.10 281.12 
2022 63.85 130.15 29.15 60.23 4.41 287.79 
2021 63.98 130.15 28.29 58.74 4.47 285.63 
2020 63.21 108.15 28.84 57.71 4.41 262.32 

 



45 South 7th Street 
Suite 2950 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 

Memorandum 
TO: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

DATE: April 14, 2025 

RE: Marketplace Analysis - Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 
   City of Mandan 

The City of Mandan (“City”) has presented a request to the Authority and the North Dakota 
Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $4,507,000 loan under Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund Program (“DWSRF Program”).  The DWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various water 
treatment, distribution, and storage facilities as approved by the Department in accordance with 
federal and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 

The City intends to use the proceeds for Phase III of the water treatment plant optimization project.    

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be revenue bonds payable from water & 
wastewater user fees.  The City’s average annual payment under the proposed loan will be 
approximately $270,057 indicating a 110% net revenue coverage requirement of approximately 
$297,063.  The City will be required to deposit $274,050 into a reserve fund with payments of $54,810 
per year for the first five years of the loan.  Effective January 2025, the City raised the monthly base 
rates for residential users by $4.75 and commercial users by $9.50, which will generate annual revenues 
of approximately $582,000.  Pro forma net operating coverage of the Water & Wastewater Fund was 
1.84x, 3.12x, 2.84x and 2.33x for 2020-2023, respectively.  The existing net operating revenue and 
increase in rates will provide sufficient net revenues to meet the 110% coverage requirement. 

As of November 4, 2024, the City has outstanding $130,000 of General Obligation Bonds, $48,615,567 
of Improvement Bonds, $9,565,000 of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, and $20,227,605 of Water/Sewer 
Revenue Bonds outstanding. The City currently has five Clean Water SRF totaling $5,305,000 
outstanding and eight Drinking Water SRF loans totaling $14,922,605 outstanding.  The City is current 
in its payments for its outstanding Authority loan. 

Funding for the construction of the City's projects has been included in a list of approved projects as 
prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the DWSRF Program, the 
City will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the DWSRF Program. 

Attachment 2D



Memorandum 

To: Industrial Commission 

From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 
Bank of North Dakota 

Date: April 2, 2025 

RE: City of Mandan 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 

ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$4,507,000 loan to the City of Mandan under the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). The 
entire cost of the project is $11,267,000, with the City receiving a Department of Water Resources cost-
share grant of $6,760,000. 

The project will complete Phase III of a water treatment plant optimization project. The requested loan 
term is 20 years. The City will issue a revenue bond payable with water/wastewater user fees. The annual 
payment will average $270,057.  

Debt Service Coverage: 

Water and Wastewater Fund 2021 2022 2023 Projected
Operating Revenue 12,373,258 11,710,926 10,216,792 10,216,792
Projected Rate Increase 581,799
Operating Expenses -6,253,921 -6,315,164 -6,648,226 -6,648,226
Net Operating Revenue 6,119,337 5,395,762 3,568,566 4,150,365
Plus: Depreciation 2,579,500 2,530,360 2,801,245 2,801,245
Adjusted Net Operating Income 8,698,837 7,926,122 6,369,811 6,951,610

Current Debt Service 2,704,720 2,724,636 2,710,801 2,710,801
Proposed Debt Service 270,057

 Total Debt Service 2,980,858

Debt Service Coverage 322% 291% 235% 233%

Attachment 2E



The City currently provides service to 8,615 residential connections that pay a water/wastewater monthly 
base rate of $32.05 and 796 commercial connections that pay a water/wastewater monthly base rate of 
$64.10. All connections pay a usage rate of $3.00 per cubic 100 foot of water and $1.65 per 100 cubic foot 
of wastewater disposal. In January 2025, the City increased the monthly base rate by $4.75 per residential 
user and by $9.50 per commercial user. This will generate approximately $581,799 of annual revenues. 
The existing revenues, combined with the rate increase, will generate sufficient net operating revenues 
to service the existing and proposed debt.  

Outstanding Debt (as of November 4, 2024): 

Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $10,324,824, which is an average of $426.54 
per resident. 

Historical census populations for the City of Mandan were 24,206 in 2020 and 18,331 in 2010. The largest 
employers in the City are Mandan Public Schools, HIT, Inc. and National Information Solutions 
Cooperative. 

Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with their 
evaluation and support of the request. 

_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

General Obligation Bonds 870,000 130,000
Improvement Bonds 61,951,888 48,615,567
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 15,275,000 9,565,000
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds 38,436,239 20,227,605

116,533,127 78,538,172



WILLIAMS

DIVIDE

MCKENZIE

BURKE

MOUNTRAIL
WARD

BOTTINEAU

MCHENRY

ROLETTE

R
EN

VI
LL

E

TO
W

NE
R CAVALIER PEMBINA

WALSH
RAMSEY

BENSON

PI
ER

CE

GRAND FORKS

NELSON

TR
AI

LL

ST
EE

LE

GRI
GGS

CASSBARNESSTUTSMANKIDDER

FOSTER

EDDY

WELLSSHERIDAN
MCLEAN

G
O

LD
EN

 V
AL

LE
Y

BILLINGS

DUNN

STARK

SLOPE

BOWMAN ADAMS

HETTINGER
GRANT

SIOUX

MORTON

OLIVER

MERCER

BURLEIGH

EMMONS

LOGAN

MCINTOSH

LAMOURE

DICKEY

RANSOM

SARGENT

RICHLAND

Fil
e: 

 W
:\M

\M
an

da
n\0

05
10

-2
02

2-
00

2\C
AD

 D
wg

s\0
0-

Ge
ne

ra
l\P

lan
 S

he
ets

\Lo
ca

tio
n M

ap
s.d

wg
Pl

ott
ed

: B
y: 

 T
wi

la 
Ke

mp
    

Da
te:

  T
hu

rsd
ay

, J
un

e 2
2, 

20
23

Fil
e: 

 W
:\M

\M
an

da
n\0

05
10

-2
02

2-
00

2\C
AD

 D
wg

s\0
0-

Ge
ne

ra
l\P

lan
 S

he
ets

\Lo
ca

tio
n M

ap
s.d

wg

PR
OJ

EC
T 

TI
TL

E:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

ALT. PROJECT NO:

SHEET DESIGNATOR: SHEET NO:

CLIENT:

SHEET TITLE:

PREPARED BY:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SY
M

DA
TE

AP
PR

ST
AT

US
:

Certification of Individual Project Design Disciplines Are
Included On Their Individual Drawings, Respectively

A
dv

an
ce

d 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 L
LC

  w
w

w
.a

e2
s.

co
m

PH
A

SE
 II

I O
PT

IM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

PHASE III OPTIMIZATION

CITY OF MANDAN
MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

00510-2022-002

XXX-XXXX
JUNE 2023 EX 001

TRK

LDH

LDH

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y 
- N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

MISSOURI RIVER

1
001

PROJECT LOCATION MAP
MORTON COUNTY

2
001

PROJECT VICINITY MAP
MORTON COUNTY

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

PROJECT LOCATION

BISMARCK
MANDAN

38TH ST.

CO2 FEED AND
STORAGE
IMPROVEMENTS

MANDAN WATER
TREATMENT

FACILITY
LIME FEED AND

STORAGE
IMPROVEMENTS

CHLORINE ROOM
IMPROVEMENTS

FILTER
IMPROVEMENTS

3
001

PROJECT AERIAL MAP
MORTON COUNTY

Attachment 2F



 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100 
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
To: Industrial Commission: Governor Kelly Armstrong, Attorney General Drew H. Wrigley, 

Agriculture Commissioner Doug Goehring 
 
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

 
Date: April 16, 2025 
 
Re:  Ashley, Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
 Colfax, Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
 Colfax, Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
 Mandan, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
             Portland, Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
  
Under current policy, the Public Finance Authority can make loans under the State Revolving 
Fund Program in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 and under the Capital Financing Program 
in an amount not to exceed $500,000 without seeking the final approval of the Industrial 
Commission. Within this policy, once the loan has been approved, the Public Finance Authority 
is required to provide the details of the loan to the Industrial Commission. Accordingly, the 
Public Finance Authority and its Advisory Committee used this policy to approve the following 
loans. 
 
The committee reviewed the City of Ashley’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
application for a $461,000 loan towards a $1,100,500 project. A CDBG grant will provide 
$639,500 of funding. This project will rehabilitate manholes and sanitary sewer vitrified pipe 
with cured in place pipe. The requested term for the loan is 30 years. The City will issue revenue 
bonds payable with sewer user fees.  
 
The committee reviewed the City of Colfax’s CWSRF application for a $1,251,000 loan towards 
a $1,692,190 project. The Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund will 
provide a $441,190 loan. The project will construct a new sanitary lift station to serve the 
Performing Arts Center and growth on the east side of the City. The requested term for the loan 
is 30 years. The improvement bonds will be a contingent general obligation of the City, backed 
by the statutory requirement that the City will levy a general deficiency tax in the event that the 
revenues from the collection of special assessments are not sufficient to pay the debt service on 
the improvement bonds.  
 

Attachment 3 



The committee reviewed the City of CWSRF application for a $1,072,000 loan towards a 
$1,865,126 project. The Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund will provide 
a $793,126 loan. The project will construct a stormwater retention pond, sanitary sewer mains, 
services and manholes to serve Colfax Reserve First Addition. The requested term for the loan is 
30 years. The improvement bonds will be a contingent general obligation of the City, backed by 
the statutory requirement that the City will levy a general deficiency tax in the event that the 
revenues from the collection of special assessments are not sufficient to pay the debt service on 
the improvement bonds.  
 
The committee reviewed the City of Mandan’s Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) 
application for a $1,930,000 loan towards a $10,320,381 project. The Department of Water 
Resources Cost Share will provide $4,777,086 and local funds on hand of $3,613,295 will be 
used. The project will replace the aging cast iron pipe water main, services, hydrants and gate 
valves in an area that has experienced over 20 watermain breaks in the last 15 years. The 
requested term for the loan is 16 years. The improvement bonds will be a contingent general 
obligation of the City, backed by the statutory requirement that the City will levy a general 
deficiency tax in the event that the revenues from the collection of special assessments are not 
sufficient to pay the debt service on the improvement bonds.  
 
The committee reviewed the City of Portland’s DWSRF application for a $1,930,000 loan 
towards a $3,858,500 project. The Department of Water Resources Cost Share will provide 
$642,510 and USDA-RD will fund $1,285,990. This project will replace a 50,000-gallon storage 
tank with a new 150,000-gallon elevated tank and upsize pipe and add looping in four different 
sections of the distribution system to ensure adequate flows within the system. The requested 
term for the loan is 30 years. The City will issue revenue bonds payable with water user fees.  
 
The Public Finance Authority’s Advisory Committee approved these loans at their April 16, 
2025, meeting.  



 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 
(701) 328-7100 

 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
 
To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
     
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
 
Date:    April 4, 2025 
 
Re:  City of Ashley 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan  
 
 
Purpose of the Project:  Rehabilitate manholes and sanitary sewer vitrified pipe with cured in 
place pipe.  
 
  
Project Amount:   
 
 
 
 
 
Population to Benefit from the Project: 613 
Population Served by the System: 613 
 
 
The City will issue revenue bonds payable with sewer user fees. The requested term for the loan 
is 30 years. The average annual payment for the revenue bonds will be $19,305. The reserve 
requirement will be $20,440 and the 110% coverage requirement will be $21,235.   
 
The City has 450 residential and 57 commercial connections which pay a monthly base rate of 
$11.50 which is a $1.50 increase from the 2024 monthly rate. This rate increase will generate 
approximately $9,126 annually. 
 
         
                    
 
 

CWSRF Request $     461,000 
CDBG Grant        639,500 
Total Project Cost $  1,100,500 

Attachment 3A 

http://www.nd.gov/pfa


 
Water and Sewer Fund: 
 
    Unaudited 

  2021 2022 2023 2024 
Operating Revenue  $176,490 $178,545 $191,187 $234,697 
Operating Expenses  163,623 319,254 154,368 139,087 
Net Operating Revenue (Expense)  12,867 -140,710 36,819 95,609 
Depreciation  3,300 195,836 - - 

Adjusted Net Operating Revenue $16,167 $55,126 $36,819 $95,609 

Proforma Rate Increase Revenue $9,126 $9,126 $9,126 $9,126 
Proforma CWSRF Bond Payment $19,305 $19,305 $19,305 $19,305 

Proforma Net Operating Coverage  131% 333% 238% 543% 

      
 
Existing net revenues coupled with the implemented water/wastewater base rate increases should 
allow the City to continue meeting the coverage requirements.  
 
Outstanding Debt December 31, 2024: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1  All payments have been made as agreed. The City has one Drinking Water SRF loan with an 
outstanding balance of $305,292. 
 
The average annual payment of all debt is $191,974 which is $313 per resident. 
 
 
The City of Ashley is located in McIntosh County 121 miles southeast of Bismarck. Based on the 
2020 census, the total population was 613; this is a decrease of 136 from the 2010 census. The 
largest employers in the City are Ashley Veterinary Clinic with 15 employees, Ashley Public 
Schools with 28 employees and Ashley Medical Center which employs 125. 
 
 
School Enrollment: 

 Original Outstanding 
 Amount Amount 

Improvement Bonds 1 $3,761,441 $3,227,949 
Total $3,761,441 $3,227,949 

   



 
 
 

 
The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $1,415,292. This is an increase of $300,375 from the 2020 
taxable valuation.   
 
 
Property Taxes Levied & Collected 2/28/2025: 
 

Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $445,070 $299,069 67% 
2023 $476,652 $376,888 79% 
2022 $349,057 $326,441 94% 

 
 
Special Assessments Levied & Collected 2/28/2025: 
 

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $14,902 $11,778 14% 
2023 $- $- - 
2022 $76,625 $63,030 82% 

 
 
City of Ashley Mill Levy History: 
 

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 118.82 104.80 39.64 107.36 16.87 387.49 
2023 114.42 102.50 40.00 106.28 5.00 368.20 
2022 104.42 71.07 40.00 102.69 5.00 323.18 
2021 122.52 71.20 40.00 104.98 5.00 343.70 
2020 122.56 65.18 40.00 108.47 5.00 341.21 

  
 
 

    Projected 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 

141 129 127 112 110 



!(

!(

%2

%2

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S&,S&,S

&,S

&,S&,S&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S&,S

&,S

&,S&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S&,S&,S &,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S&,S &,S

&,S

&,S&,S&,S

&,S&,S &,S&,S

&,S&,S &,S

&,S &,S
&,S

&,S&,S

&,S &,S&,S

&,S &,S&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S
&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S &,S &,S

&,S

&,S&,S&,S

&,S&,S &,S

&,S &,S

&,S

&,S&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S

&,S
&,S

1ST
ST NE

95TH ST

SE

8T
H

A
V

E

N
W

1ST ST SW

3RD ST NW

7T
H

A
V

E
N

W

2N
D

A
V

E
N

E

2ND ST SW

3R
D

A
V

E
S

W

6TH ST NW

1S
T

A
V

E
S

W

5T
H

A
V

E
S

W

7TH ST SE

2N
D

A
V

E
S

W

4TH ST SW

4T
H

A
V

E
N

W

6TH S
T N

E

3RD ST SW

6TH ST NW

6TH ST SE

FRONTAGE RD W

5TH ST SE

3RD ST NE

1ST ST NW

4TH ST NE

5TH ST NE

FRONTAGE RD W

4TH ST NW

4TH ST SW

1S
T

A
V

E
N

W

2ND ST NE2ND ST NW

95TH ST SE

2ND ST SW

3R
D

A
V

E

N
W

7TH ST NW 7TH ST NE

1S
T

A
V

E
N

E

C
E

N
T

E
R

A
V

E
S

C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
V

E
N

2N
D

A
V

E

N
W

5T
H

 A
V

E
 N

W
48

T
H

 A
V

E
 S

E

¬«11

¬«3

8'
'

V
C

P

10
"

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8''
VCP

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

12"

PVC

10
"

V
C

P
10

"
V

C
P

8'
'

V
C

P

8''
VCP

8''

V
C

P

8"
 P

V
C

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

P
V

C

12"

PVC

8'
'

V
C

P

10
"

V
C

P

8'
' V

C
P

8''
VCP

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

P
V

C

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
' P

V
C

8'' VCP

8'' PVC

8'
' V

C
P

8"
P

V
C

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' P

V
C

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8''
VCP

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'' VCP

8'' VCP

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' V

C
P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
' V

C
P

8'' VCP

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' P

V
C

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
'

P
V

C

8'' PVC

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
' P

V
C

8'' PVC

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' P

V
C

10" PVC

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
' V

C
P

8'
' V

C
P

8'' VCP

8'
'

V
C

P

8'' PVC 8'' PVC

10" PVC

12"
PVC

8''
VCP

10
" 

V
C

P

8'' PVC

8'' VCP
8'

' V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

10" PVC 8'' PVC

12"

VCP

12"

VCP

12"

VCP

12" VCP

12" VCP

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8''
VCP

12
" 

V
C

P
8'

'
V

C
P

8'
'

V
C

P

8'
'

V
C

P

8''
VCP

8'
'

V
C

P

12" VCP

51 45

46

47 40

39

38

37

17

18
4148

49

5052

53

54

55

56
57

63

5859

62

98

61
60

44

93

94

97 89

64

95

96

90

91

92
86

85

84 77

78

7683 69

70

676665

3126 3621

2419 29

30 35
7

6
34

33
5

28

27
32

22

23

16

14

13

14A
12

10

11

15A15B

15C

12A 9

1

2

15D

3

4

8

99

100

101

102 79
72

71

738087

7488 81

82 75

68

2520

42

43

9A

1B
1A

LS-1

LS-2

0 500 1,000250

Feet

Created By:  TJS/BAS        Date Created:  08/12/19        Date Saved:  06/14/24    Date Plotted:  N/A    Date Exported:  06/14/24
Plotted By: brook.smith        Parcel Date:  N/A       Aerial Image:  2018 County NAIP SIDS
Elevation Data:  LidarHorizontal Datum: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota South FIPS 3302 Feet    Vertical Datum:  NAVD1988
T:\Projects\22800\22986_Ashley Sanitary\10_ArcPro\Sanitary Televising\Sanitary Televising.aprx

SANITARY SEWER RELINING
CITY OF ASHLEY
MCINTOSH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

Legend

Gravity Main: Reline

Sanitary Force Main

Existing Sanitary Gravity Main

&,S Sanitary Manhole

%2 Sanitary Wet Well

!( Sanitary Lift Station

1:6,000

Attachment 3A.1



 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100 
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER  

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
  
 
 
To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
 Miles Silbert, Public Finance Management 
 Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 
       
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
 
Date:    April 7, 2025 
 
Re:  City of Colfax 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan  
 
 
Purpose of the Project:  Construct a new sanitary lift station to serve the Performing Arts 
Center and growth on the east side of the City. 
  
Project Amount:   

 
 
 
 
 
Population to Benefit from the Project: 80 
Population Served by the System: 172 
 
The requested term for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan is 30 years. 
Accordingly, the average annual payment will be approximately $52,636. The City will issue 
improvement bonds payable with special assessments. The improvement bonds will be a 
contingent general obligation of the City, backed by the statutory requirement that the City levy a 
general deficiency tax in the event that the revenues from the collection of special assessments 
are not sufficient to pay the debt service on the improvement bonds.  
 
 
 
 

CWSRF Request     $1,251,000 
BND IRLF          441,190 
Project Total     $1,692,190 

Attachment 3B 



The City has 101 connections which pay a monthly base rate of $12.50 per connection (includes 
3,000 gallons) and $0.50/1,000 gallons.  
 
Sewer Fund:       
             Unaudited 
  2021 2022 2023 2024 
Operating Revenue  $19,896 $20,980 $23,678 $28,211 
Operating Expenses  5,314 15,077 6,860 9,192 
Net Operating Revenue   14,582 5,903 16,818 19,019 
Transfer In  3,575 - - - 
Adjusted Net Operating Revenue $18,157 $5,903 $16,818 $19,019 
Revenue Bond Payments  $12,000 $12,860 $12,700 $12,540 
Net Operating Coverage   151% 46% 132% 152% 

      
 
 Outstanding Debt December 31, 2024:  

 Original  Outstanding 
 Amount Amount 

Improvement Bonds 1 $4,173,133   $ 2,937,585 
Revenue Bonds 1 329,500   222,400 

Total Bonds $4,502,633  $ 3,159,985                  
 
1 All payments have been made as agreed. The City has one CWSRF with an outstanding balance 
of $416,000 and one recently approved Drinking Water SRF loan.  
 
The average annual bond payment including these two new issues and the related BND IRLF 
debt is approximately $264,535 or $1,176 per resident. 
 
 
The City of Colfax is located in Richland County approximately 28 miles northwest of 
Wahpeton on Interstate 29. The total population according to the 2020 census is 172; this is an 
increase of 51 from the 2010 census. The current estimated population is 225. The largest 
employers in the area are Richland #44 High School with 27 employees, Minn-Kota Ag 
(agriculture) which employs 7 and Colfax Express (agriculture) with 5 employees.   
 
 
Richland K-12 School Enrollment: 

    Projected 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 

262 273 284 307 310 
 
 
 



 
The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $1,488,298. This is an increase of $786,318 over the 2020 
taxable valuation.  
 
 
Property Tax Collections as of March 12, 2025: 
 

Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $207,156 $172,057 83% 
2023 $134,574 $126,427 94% 
2022 $113,450 $112,100 99% 

 
 
Special Assessment Collections as of March 12, 2025: 
  

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2023 $128,447 $98,934 77% 
2023 $86,823 $79,468 92% 
2022 $87,991 $87,146 99% 

 
Mill Levy History:  
  

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 52.53 106.50 4.56 95.15 13.00 271.74 
2023 40.92 106.50 4.56 95.35 8.07 255.40 
2022 27.15 109.00 4.56 95.44 8.74 244.89 
2021 35.12 110.00 4.56 98.44 9.29 257.41 
2020 43.68 113.50 4.56 99.19 9.66 270.59 

 



45 South 7th Street 
Suite 2950 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 

Memorandum 
TO: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

DATE: April 14, 2025 

RE: Marketplace Analysis - Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 
   City of Colfax 

The City of Colfax (the “City”) has presented a request to the Authority and the North Dakota 
Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $1,251,000 loan under the Clean Water 
State Revolving Fund Program (“CWSRF Program”).  The CWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various 
wastewater treatment projects and landfill projects as approved by the Department in accordance with 
federal and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 

The City intends to use the proceeds to construct a new sanitary lift station to serve the Performing 
Arts Center and growth on the east side of the City.  

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be improvement bonds of the City 
payable from special assessments levied against the benefited property.  The proposed term of the 
loan is 30 years with a subsidized interest rate of 1.50%.  The City’s average annual payment under the 
proposed loan will be approximately $52,636.  The improvement bonds will be a contingent general 
obligation of the City, which will be required by law to levy a general deficiency tax if the revenues 
collected from the levy of special assessments are insufficient to make the debt service payments. 

As of December 31, 2024, the City has $2,937,585 of improvement bonds and $222,400 of revenue 
bonds outstanding.  The City has one Clean Water SRF with outstanding balance of $416,000 and one 
Drinking Water SRF loan has been recently approved.  The City is current in its payments for its 
outstanding Authority loan. 

Funding for the construction of the City's projects has been included in a list of approved projects as 
prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the CWSRF Program, the 
City will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the CWSRF Program. 

Attachment 3B.1



Memorandum 

To: Industrial Commission 

From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 
Bank of North Dakota 

Date: April 7, 2025 

RE: City of Colfax 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 

ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$1,251,000 loan to the City of Colfax under the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). The entire 
cost of the project is $1,692,190, with the City receiving a $441,190 loan from the BND Infrastructure 
Revolving Loan Fund. 

The project will construct a new sanitary sewer lift station and waterline extension to serve the Performing 
Arts Center and growth on the east side of the City. The requested loan term is 30 years. The City will issue 
an improvement bond payable with special assessment collections. The annual payment will average 
$52,636.  

Debt Service Coverage: 

The City currently provides service to 101 connections that pay a monthly base rate of $12.50 and a usage 
fee of $0.50 per 1,000 gallons in excess of 3,000 gallons. 

Sewer Fund 2021 2022 2023
Operating Revenue 19,896 20,980 23,678
Operating Expenses -5,314 -15,077 -6,860
Net Operating Revenue 14,582 5,903 16,818
Plus: Transfers In 3,575 0 0
Adjusted Net Operating Income 18,157 5,903 16,818

Current Debt Service 12,000 12,860 12,700

Debt Service Coverage 151% 46% 132%

Attachment 3B.2



Outstanding Debt (as of December 31, 2024): 

Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $264,535, which is an average of $1,176 per 
resident. 

The current estimated population is 225. Historical census populations for the City of Colfax were 172 in 
2020 and 121 in 2010. The largest employers in the City are Richland High School, Minn-Kota Ag and Colfax 
Express. 

Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with their 
evaluation and support of the request. 

_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Revenue Bonds 329,500 222,400
Improvement Bonds 4,173,133 2,937,585

4,502,633 3,159,985



Attachment 3B.3

Zach.Hatting
Rectangle

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Future EPAC

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Polygonal Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Existing 4" FM

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Polygonal Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Connect to Existing 4" FMInstall 3 - 4" Gate Valves and BoxesInstall 4" Tee

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sanitary Manhole, Base, Cover and Casting

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Lift Station Wet Well, Valve Vault, and Electrical

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sewer Service Wye

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install 8" PVC Sewer Pipe

Zach.Hatting
Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sanitary Manhole, Base, Cover and Casting

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Part 2 - Options 1 & 2 

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Preliminary Layout Sketch





 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100 
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER  

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
  
 
 
To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
 Miles Silbert, Public Finance Management 
 Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 
       
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
 
Date:    April 7, 2025 
 
Re:  City of Colfax 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan  
 
 
Purpose of the Project:  Construct a stormwater retention pond, sanitary sewer mains, services 
and manholes to serve Colfax Reserve First Addition. 
  
Project Amount:   

 
 
 
 
 
Population to Benefit from the Project: 80 
Population Served by the System: 172 
 
The requested term for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan is 30 years. 
Accordingly, the average annual payment will be approximately $45,005. The City will issue 
improvement bonds payable with special assessments. The improvement bonds will be a 
contingent general obligation of the City, backed by the statutory requirement that the City levy a 
general deficiency tax in the event that the revenues from the collection of special assessments 
are not sufficient to pay the debt service on the improvement bonds.  
 
 
 
 

CWSRF Request     $1,072,000 
BND IRLF          793,126 
Project Total     $1,865,126 

Attachment 3C 



The City has 101 connections which pay a monthly base rate of $12.50 per connection (includes 
3,000 gallons) and $0.50/1,000 gallons.  
 
Sewer Fund:       
             Unaudited 
  2021 2022 2023 2024 
Operating Revenue  $19,896 $20,980 $23,678 $28,211 
Operating Expenses  5,314 15,077 6,860 9,192 
Net Operating Revenue   14,582 5,903 16,818 19,019 
Transfer In  3,575 - - - 
Adjusted Net Operating Revenue $18,157 $5,903 $16,818 $19,019 
Revenue Bond Payments  $12,000 $12,860 $12,700 $12,540 
Net Operating Coverage   151% 46% 132% 152% 

      
 
 Outstanding Debt December 31, 2024:  

 Original  Outstanding 
 Amount Amount 

Improvement Bonds 1 $4,173,133   $ 2,937,585 
Revenue Bonds 1 329,500   222,400 

Total Bonds $4,502,633  $ 3,159,985                  
 
1 All payments have been made as agreed. The City has one CWSRF with an outstanding balance 
of $416,000 and one recently approved Drinking Water SRF loan.  
 
The average annual bond payment including these two new issues and the related BND IRLF 
debt is approximately $264,535 or $1,176 per resident. 
 
The City of Colfax is located in Richland County approximately 28 miles northwest of 
Wahpeton on Interstate 29. The total population according to the 2020 census is 172; this is an 
increase of 51 from the 2010 census. The current estimated population is 225. The largest 
employers in the area are Richland #44 High School with 27 employees, Minn-Kota Ag 
(agriculture) which employs 7 and Colfax Express (agriculture) with 5 employees.   
 
 
Richland K-12 School Enrollment: 

    Projected 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 

262 273 284 307 310 
 
 
 
 



The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $1,488,298. This is an increase of $786,318 over the 2020 
taxable valuation.  
 
 
Property Tax Collections as of March 12, 2025: 
 

Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $207,156 $172,057 83% 
2023 $134,574 $126,427 94% 
2022 $113,450 $112,100 99% 

 
 
Special Assessment Collections as of March 12, 2025: 
  

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2023 $128,447 $98,934 77% 
2023 $86,823 $79,468 92% 
2022 $87,991 $87,146 99% 

 
Mill Levy History:  
  

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 52.53 106.50 4.56 95.15 13.00 271.74 
2023 40.92 106.50 4.56 95.35 8.07 255.40 
2022 27.15 109.00 4.56 95.44 8.74 244.89 
2021 35.12 110.00 4.56 98.44 9.29 257.41 
2020 43.68 113.50 4.56 99.19 9.66 270.59 

 



 
45 South 7th Street 
Suite 2950 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 
 
 

Memorandum 
TO:  DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
  North Dakota Public Finance Authority 
 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 
 

DATE: April 14, 2025 
 

RE:  Marketplace Analysis - Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 
     City of Colfax 
 

 

The City of Colfax (the “City”) has presented a request to the Authority and the North Dakota 
Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $1,072,000 loan under the Clean Water 
State Revolving Fund Program (“CWSRF Program”).  The CWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various 
wastewater treatment projects and landfill projects as approved by the Department in accordance with 
federal and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 
 

The City intends to use the proceeds to construct a stormwater retention pond, sanitary sewer mains, 
and services and manholes to serve Colfax Reserve First Addition.  
 

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be improvement bonds of the City 
payable from special assessments levied against the benefited property.  The proposed term of the 
loan is 30 years with a subsidized interest rate of 1.50%.  The City’s average annual payment under the 
proposed loan will be approximately $45,005.  The improvement bonds will be a contingent general 
obligation of the City, which will be required by law to levy a general deficiency tax if the revenues 
collected from the levy of special assessments are insufficient to make the debt service payments. 
 

As of December 31, 2024, the City has $2,937,585 of improvement bonds and $222,400 of revenue 
bonds outstanding.  The City has one Clean Water SRF with outstanding balance of $416,000 and one 
Drinking Water SRF loan has been recently approved.  The City is current in its payments for its 
outstanding Authority loan. 
 

Funding for the construction of the City's projects has been included in a list of approved projects as 
prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the CWSRF Program, the 
City will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the CWSRF Program. 
 

Attachment 3C.1



 

 

Memorandum 
 
To: Industrial Commission 
 
From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 

Bank of North Dakota 
 
Date: April 7, 2025 
 
RE: City of Colfax 
 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program 
 
ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$1,072,000 loan to the City of Colfax under the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). The entire 
cost of the project is $1,865,126, with the City receiving a $793,126 loan from the BND Infrastructure 
Revolving Loan Fund. 
 
The project will construct a stormwater retention pond and infrastructure needed for the First Addition 
of Colfax Reserve development. The requested loan term is 30 years. The City will issue an improvement 
bond payable with special assessment collections. The annual payment will average $45,005.  
 
Debt Service Coverage: 
 

 
 

The City currently provides service to 101 connections that pay a monthly base rate of $12.50 and a usage 
fee of $0.50 per 1,000 gallons in excess of 3,000 gallons. 
 
 
  

Sewer Fund 2021 2022 2023
Operating Revenue 19,896 20,980 23,678
Operating Expenses -5,314 -15,077 -6,860
Net Operating Revenue 14,582 5,903 16,818
Plus: Transfers In 3,575 0 0
Adjusted Net Operating Income 18,157 5,903 16,818

Current Debt Service 12,000 12,860 12,700

Debt Service Coverage 151% 46% 132%

Attachment 3C.2



 

 

Outstanding Debt (as of December 31, 2024): 
 

 
 
Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $264,535, which is an average of $1,176 per 
resident. 
 
The current estimated population is 225. Historical census populations for the City of Colfax were 172 in 
2020 and 121 in 2010. The largest employers in the City are Richland High School, Minn-Kota Ag and Colfax 
Express. 
 
Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with their 
evaluation and support of the request. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 
 
 
 
 

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Revenue Bonds 329,500 222,400
Improvement Bonds 4,173,133 2,937,585

4,502,633 3,159,985



Attachment 3C.3

Zach.Hatting
Rectangle

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Future EPAC

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Polygonal Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Existing 4" FM

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Oval

Zach.Hatting
Polygonal Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Connect to Existing 4" FMInstall 3 - 4" Gate Valves and BoxesInstall 4" Tee

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sanitary Manhole, Base, Cover and Casting

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Lift Station Wet Well, Valve Vault, and Electrical

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sewer Service Wye

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install 8" PVC Sewer Pipe

Zach.Hatting
Line

Zach.Hatting
Callout
Install Sanitary Manhole, Base, Cover and Casting

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Part 2 - Options 1 & 2 

Zach.Hatting
Typewritten Text
Preliminary Layout Sketch





 

 
 

 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100 
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.pfa.nd.gov 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee  
 Miles Silbert, Public Finance Management 
 Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 

 
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director  
 
Date: April 4, 2025 
 
Re:  City of Mandan 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan Application 
  

 
Purpose of the Project:  Replace the aging cast iron pipe water main, services, hydrants and 
gate valves in an area that has experienced over 20 watermain breaks in the last 15 years. 
 
Project Amount:   
 
 
 
 
 
Population to Benefit from the Project: 400 
Population Served by the System: 24,206 plus Missouri West Water System which serves 
8,100 people 
 
The requested term for the DWSRF loan is 16 years. Accordingly, the average annual payment 
loan will be approximately $137,816. The City will issue improvement bonds payable with 
special assessments. The improvement bonds will be a contingent general obligation of the City, 
backed by the statutory requirement that the City levy a general deficiency tax in the event that 
the revenues from the collection of special assessments are not sufficient to pay the debt service 
on the improvement bonds.  
 
The City currently has 8,615 residential connections that pay a water/wastewater base rate of 
$36.80 and 796 commercial connections that pay a water/wastewater base rate of $73.60 and 
both pay $3.00/100 cubic foot of water usage and $1.65/100 cubic foot of wastewater disposal.  
 

DWSRF Request     $   1,930,000 
DWR Cost Share          4,777,086 
Local - Cash          3,613,295 
Project Total     $ 10,320,381 

Attachment 3D 



 
Water & Wastewater Fund: 
 
 
  2020 2021 2022 2023 
Operating Revenue $9,038,542 $12,373,258 $11,710,926 $10,216,792 
Operating Expenses 5,806,222 6,253,921 6,315,164 6,648,226 
Net Operating Revenue 3,232,320 6,119,337 5,395,762 3,568,566 
Depreciation 2,365,212 2,579,500 2,530,360 2,801,245 
Adjusted Net Operating Revenue $5,597,532 $8,698,837 $7,926,122 $6,369,811 
Revenue Bond Payments $2,763,599 $2,704,720 $2,724,636 $2,710,801 
Net Operating Coverage 203% 322% 291% 235% 

     
 
 
Outstanding Debt as of December 31, 2024:  
 Original  Outstanding 

 Debt  Debt 
General Obligation Bonds - Bridge  $               870,000    $         130,000  
Improvement Bonds               61,951,888          48,615,567  
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Sports Complex              15,275,000            9,065,000  
Revenue Bonds - Water & Sewer 1              38,436,239          20,322,905  

Total  $        116,533,127    $    78,133,472  

    
1 Payments to the NDPFA have been made as agreed. The City has eight DWSRF loans with a 
total outstanding balance of $14,847,605 and five Clean Water SRF loans that total $5,305,000. 
The City had debt service reserves of $3,615,306. There are two DWSRF loans and one CWSRF 
loan that have been approved but not closed totaling $24,849,000. 
 
The average annual payment of all outstanding debt including approved but not closed and this 
new request is $11,028,963 which is $456 per resident. 
 
The City of Mandan is located in Morton County on Interstate 94. Based on the 2020 census, the 
total population is 24,206; this is an increase of 5,875 over the 2010 census. The largest 
employers in the City are Mandan Public Schools with 697 employees, HIT, Inc. (social 
assistance) employs 641 and NISC (information services) with 460 employees. 
 
 
K-12 School Enrollment: 
 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 
4,037 4,223 4,277 4,368 4,375 

 



 
The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $131,480,934. This is an increase of $32,318,077 over the 
2020 taxable valuation.  
 
 
 
Property Tax Levies and Collections as of 12/31/2024: 
   
Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $7,888,079 $3,024,747 38% 
2023 $7,939,478 $7,842,807 99% 
2022 $7,223,291 $7,185,035 99% 
2021 $6,608,207 $6,607,326 100% 

 
 
Special Assessment Levies and Collections 12/31/2024: 
  

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $6,737,373 $3,857,291 57% 
2023 $4,541,789 $4,242,323 93% 
2022 $4,602,813 $4,421,783 96% 
2021 $4,625,863 $4,607,694 100% 

 
 
City of Mandan Mill Levy: 
 

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 64.09 128.14 29.15 55.09 4.13 280.60 
2023 63.93 127.22 29.13 56.74 4.10 281.12 
2022 63.85 130.15 29.15 60.23 4.41 287.79 
2021 63.98 130.15 28.29 58.74 4.47 285.63 
2020 63.21 108.15 28.84 57.71 4.41 262.32 

 



50 South Sixth Street 
Suite 2250 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 

Memorandum 
TO: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

DATE: April 14, 2025 

RE: Marketplace Analysis - Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 
   City of Mandan

The City of Mandan (the “City”) has presented a request to the Authority and the North Dakota 
Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $1,930,000 loan under the Drinking 
Water State Revolving Fund Program (“DWSRF Program”).  The DWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various water 
treatment, distribution and storage facilities as approved by the Department in accordance with federal 
and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 

The City intends to use the proceeds to replace the aging cast iron pipe water main, services, hydrants 
and gate valves.  

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be improvement bonds of the City 
payable from special assessments levied against the benefited property.  The proposed term of the 
loan is 16 years with a subsidized interest rate of 1.50%.  The City’s average annual payment under the 
proposed loan will be approximately $137,816.  The improvement bonds will be a contingent general 
obligation of the City, which will be required by law to levy a general deficiency tax if the revenues 
collected from the levy of special assessments are insufficient to make the debt service payments. 

As of December 31, 2024, the City has $130,000 of general obligation bonds, $48,615,567 of 
improvement bonds, $9,065,000 of sales tax revenue bonds and $20,322,905 of revenue bonds 
outstanding.  The City has five Clean Water SRF and eight Drinking Water SRF loans with outstanding 
balances of $5,305,000 and $14,847,605, respectively.  The City is current in its payments for its 
outstanding Authority loan. 

Funding the construction of the City’s improvements has been included in a list of approved uses as 
prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the DWSRF Program, the 
City will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the DWSRF Program. 

Attachment 3D.1



 

 

Memorandum 
 
To: Industrial Commission 
 
From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 

Bank of North Dakota 
 
Date: April 7, 2025 
 
RE: City of Mandan 
 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 
 
ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$1,930,000 loan to the City of Mandan under the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). The 
entire cost of the project is $10,320,381, with Department of Water Resources providing a $4,777,086 
cost-share grant and the City using $3,613,295 of local funds on hand.  
 
The project will replace cast iron pipe water main, services, hydrants and gate valves. The requested loan 
term is 16 years. The City will issue an improvement bond payable with special assessment collections. 
The annual payment will average $137,816.  
 
Water & Wastewater Fund: 
 

 
 

The City currently serves 8,615 residential connections that pay a monthly water/wastewater base rate 
of $36.80 and 796 commercial connections that pay a monthly water/wastewater base rate of $73.60. All 
connections pay a volume charge of $3.00 per 100 cubic feet of water usage and $1.65 per 100 cubic feet 
of wastewater disposal.  
 

Water and Wastewater Fund 2021 2022 2023
Operating Revenue 12,373,258 11,710,926 10,216,792
Projected Rate Increase
Operating Expenses -6,253,921 -6,315,164 -6,648,226
Net Operating Revenue 6,119,337 5,395,762 3,568,566
Plus: Depreciation 2,579,500 2,530,360 2,801,245
Adjusted Net Operating Income 8,698,837 7,926,122 6,369,811

Current Debt Service 2,704,720 2,724,636 2,710,801

Debt Service Coverage 322% 291% 235%

Attachment 3D.2



 

 

Outstanding Debt (as of December 31, 2024): 
 

 
 
Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $11,028,963, which is an average of $455.63 
per resident. 
 
Historical census populations for the City of Mandan were 24,206 in 2020, 18,331 in 2010 and 16,718 in 
2000. The largest employers in the City are Mandan Public School District, Housing Industry Training (HIT) 
and National Information Solutions Cooperative (NISC). 
 
Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with their 
evaluation and support of the request. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 
 
 
 
 

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

General Obligation Bonds 870,000 130,000
Improvement Bonds 61,951,888 48,615,567
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 15,275,000 9,065,000
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds 38,436,239 20,322,905

116,533,127 78,133,472



8T
H

AV
E

N
W

1ST ST NW

10TH
AVE

NW

8TH ST NW

LOHSTRETER RD

12TH

AVE
NW

CUSTER DR

3RD ST NW

10
TH

AV
E

N
W

5TH ST NW

6TH
AV

E
N

W

6TH
AV

E
N

W

SWEET BRIAR

12
TH

A V
E

N
W

4TH
AVE

N
W

4TH ST NW

TERRY

DIVISION ST NW

3RD ST NW

M
AR

ILY
N

DR

11TH ST NW

6TH ST NW

3RD ST NW

7TH ST NW

2ND ST NW 2ND ST NW

SUNSET DR

4TH ST NW

4TH ST

7TH ST NW

13
TH

A V
E

N
W

8 T
H

A V
E

N
W

9TH ST NW

7TH
 AVE

7TH
 AVE

5TH
AV

E
N

W

5TH
AV

E
N

W

9T
H

AV
E

N
W

1ST ST NW

9T
H

AV
E

NW

6TH
AVE

N
W

17TH
AV

E
N

W

13TH
AVE

NW

16TH
AV

E
N

W

8T
H

AV
E

N
W

11
TH

AV
E

N
W

9TH
AVE

NW

CUSTER DR

SUNNY RD SW

14TH
AVE

NW

12THAVE NW

13
TH

 A
VE

 N
W

6T
H S

T N
W

6TH ST NW

1ST ST NW

2ND ST NW

10
TH

 A
VE

 N
W

¬«6

¬«94

_̂

Created By:  KMV        Date Created:  12/06/2023        Date Saved:  08/19/24        Date Exported:  08/19/24
Plotted By: kyle.volk        Parcel Date:  N/A        Aerial Image:  2023 County NAIP SIDS        Elevation Data:  N/A
Horizontal Datum: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota North FIPS 3301 Feet        Vertical Datum:  NAVD1988
T:\Projects\24000\24080_Midtown\24080_DWR_ProjectMap_20240815_temp.mxd

RECOMMENDED WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

Legend
Watermain Reconstruct

Project Area

Mercer Co.

Burleigh Co.

Oliver Co.

Morton Co.
Grant Co.

Sioux Co.

")90

")137

")139

")80

")83")84

")83

")140

¬«8
§̈¦194

§̈¦94

£¤83

¬«24

¬«6

¬«1806

¬«1804

¬«49

¬«21

_̂

Attachment 3D.3



 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 
1200 Memorial Highway, PO Box 5509 – Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5509 

(701) 328-7100 
ndpfa@nd.gov – www.nd.gov/pfa 

Industrial Commission 
of North Dakota 
 Kelly Armstrong 
GOVERNOR 

Drew H. Wrigley 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Doug Goehring 
AGRICULTURE COMMISSIONER 

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
 

  
To: Public Finance Authority Advisory Committee 
 Miles Silbert, Public Financial Advisory LLC 
 Kylee Merkel, Bank of North Dakota 
       
From: DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
 
Date:    March 24, 2025 
 
Re:  City of Portland 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program Loan  
 
 
 
Purpose of the Project: Replace a 50,000-gallon storage tank with a new 150,000-gallon 
elevated tank. Also, upsize pipe and add looping in four different sections of the distribution 
system to ensure adequate flows within the system. 
  
Project Amount:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Population to Benefit from the Project: 578 
Population Served by the System: 578 
 
 
The City will issue revenue bonds payable with water user fees. The requested term for the loan 
is 30 years. The average annual payment for the revenue bonds will be $80,953. The reserve 
requirement will be $87,550 and the 110% coverage requirement will be $89,049.   
 
 

DWSRF Request     $  1,930,000 
DWR Cost Share            642,510 
USDA-RD         1,285,990 
Project Total     $  3,858,500 

Attachment 3E 



The City has 280 water connections which monthly pay a minimum of $25 per connection or 
$10/1,000 gallons. On January 7, 2025, the monthly water base rate was raised $11.25 per user. 
The city anticipates another increase of $11.25 per user in the next year. Combined they will 
annually generate $75,600. 
 
Water Fund: 
    Unaudited 
  2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Interest Revenue  $1,204 $11 $14 $21         $- 
Operating Revenue  165,039 204,301 216,439 229,878 330,246 
Operating Expenses  219,412 204,418 202,795 172,771  221,907 
Net Operating Revenue (Expense) -$53,169 -$106 $13,659 $57,128 $108,339 
Proforma Rate Increase  $75,600 $75,600 $75,600 $75,600  $75,600 
Proforma Revenue Bond Payments  $80,953 $80,953 $80,953 $80,953  $80,953 
Proforma Net Operating Coverage   28% 93% 110% 164% 227% 

       
  
With the current and proposed rate increases, the City should meet the 110% net operating 
coverage requirement. 
 
 
Outstanding Debt as of September 30, 2024:  

 Original  Outstanding 
 Amount Amount 

Improvement Bonds $2,638,868   $    770,728 
Revenue Bonds 1 507,173   421,000 

Total Bonds $3,146,041 $ 1,191,728 
 
1 All bonds have been paid as agreed. The City has three Clean Water SRF bonds outstanding 
with a balance of $421,000. 
 
The average annual bond payment including this new issue is $340,753 or $590 per resident. 
 
 
The City of Portland is located in Traill County approximately 46 miles southwest of Grand 
Forks. The total population according to the 2020 census is 578; this is a decrease of 28 from the 
2010 census. The largest employers are May-Port School with 15 employees, SRF Commodities 
(agriculture) employs 15 and Cenex (fuel) with 11 employees.   
 
 
May-Port CG K-12 School Enrollment: 

    Projected 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 

498 480 496 504 504 



The City’s 2024 taxable valuation was $2,032,497. This is an increase of $462,404 over the 2020 
taxable valuation.  
 
 
 
Property Tax Collections as of March 25, 2025: 
 
Levy 
Year 

Dollar Amount 
of Levy 

Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $99,841 $89,266 89% 
2023 $180,691 $178,746 98% 
2022 $116,379 $115,572 99% 

 
 
Special Assessment Collections as of March 25, 2025: 
  

Year Dollar Amount 
Amount Collected to 
Date of Application 

Percentage 
Collected 

2024 $226,018 $189,447 84% 
2023 $227,381 $216,063 95% 
2022 $226,834 $222,186 98% 

 
 
Mill Levy History:  
  

Year   City School 
Park 

District 
State and 
County Other 

Total for 
Each Year 

2024 49.12 91.00 30.56 104.39 5.00 280.07 
2023 94.27 86.83 14.71 110.46 5.00 311.27 
2022 67.00 84.00 16.69 115.21 5.00 287.90 
2021 60.59 84.24 16.68 120.01 5.00 286.52 
2020 63.70 84.24 17.53 111.14 5.00 281.61 

 



 
45 South 7th Street 
Suite 2950 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

612.338.3535 
612.338.7264 Fax 
www.pfm.com 
 
 

Memorandum 
TO:  DeAnn Ament, Executive Director 
  North Dakota Public Finance Authority 
 

FROM: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 
 

DATE: April 14, 2025 
 

RE:  Marketplace Analysis - Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 
     City of Portland 
 

 

The City of Portland (“City”) has presented a request to the Authority and the North Dakota 
Department of Environmental Quality (“Department”) for a $1,930,000 loan under the Drinking 
Water State Revolving Fund Program (“DWSRF Program”).  The DWSRF Program is used to make 
subsidized interest rate loans to political subdivisions for the purpose of constructing various water 
treatment, distribution, and storage facilities as approved by the Department in accordance with 
federal and state regulations and an updated Intended Use Plan prepared by the Department. 
 

The City intends to use the proceeds to replace a 50,000-gallon storage tank with a new 150,000-gallon 
elevated tank, and ensure adequate flows within the system by upsizing pipe and adding looping in 
four different sections of the distribution system.  
 

The municipal securities to be acquired by the Authority will be revenue bonds payable with water 
user fees.  The City’s average annual payment under the proposed loan will be approximately 
$80,953 indicating a 110% net revenue coverage requirement of approximately $89,049.  The City 
will be required to deposit $87,550 into a reserve fund with payments of $17,510 per year for the 
first five years of the loan.  In January 2025, the City raised the monthly water base rate by $11.25 
per user and plans to raise it an additional $11.25 in the next year, which combined will generate 
annual revenues of $75,600.  Proforma net operating coverage of the Water Fund was 0.93x, 1.10x, 
1.64x and 2.27x for 2021-2024, respectively.  The combined increase in water user rates will provide 
sufficient net revenues to meet the 110% coverage requirement. 
 

As of September 30, 2024, the City has outstanding Improvement Bonds of $770,728, and outstanding 
Revenue Bonds of $421,000. The City currently has three Clean Water SRF loans outstanding with a 
balance of $421,000.  The City is current in its payments for its outstanding Authority loans. 
 

Funding for the construction of the City's projects has been included in a list of approved projects as 
prepared and updated by the Department. As an authorized participant in the DWSRF Program, the 
City will benefit substantially from the subsidized fixed rate loans made under the Program. 
Consequently, no other financing mechanism can provide a greater cost advantage than that offered 
by the DWSRF Program. 
 

Attachment 3E.1



Memorandum 

To: Industrial Commission 

From: Kylee Merkel, Business Banker 
Bank of North Dakota 

Date: April 1, 2025 

RE: City of Portland 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program 

ND Public Finance Authority has delivered to BND their memo which recommends approval of a 
$1,930,000 loan to the City of Portland under the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). The 
entire cost of the project is $3,858,500, with the City receiving a Department of Water Resources cost-
share grant of $642,510 and a USDA Rural Development grant of $1,285,990. 

The project will replace the existing water storage tank as well as complete distribution system upgrades. 
The requested loan term is 30 years. The City will issue a revenue bond payable with water user fees. The 
annual payment will average $80,953.  

Debt Service Coverage: 

The City currently provides service to 248 residential connections and 32 commercial connections. The 
City increased monthly base rates by $22.50 in January 2025. This resulted in a new monthly base rate of 
$47.50 per connection. The increase will generate an approximate $75,600 of additional annual revenues. 
The existing revenues, combined with the rate increase, will generate sufficient net operating revenues 
to service the proposed debt.  

Water Fund 2021 2022 2023 Projected
Operating Revenue 204,289 216,439 229,878 229,878
Projected Rate Increase 75,600
Interest Revenue 11 14 21 21
Operating Expenses -204,418 -202,795 -172,771 -172,771
Net Operating Revenue -117 13,659 57,128 132,728

Proposed Debt Service 80,953

Debt Service Coverage 164%

Attachment 3E.2



Outstanding Debt (as of September 30, 2024): 

Average annual debt service requirements are estimated at $336,650, which is an average of $582.44 per 
resident. 

Historical census populations for the City of Portland were 578 in 2020 and 606 in 2010. The largest 
employers in the City are Mayville-Portland School District, SRF Commodities and Cenex. 

Based upon the PFA recommendation and the benefits obtained with this project, BND concurs with their 
evaluation and support of the request. 

_________________________________ 
Kylee Merkel 
Business Banker 

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Revenue Bonds 507,173 421,000
Improvement Bonds 2,638,868 770,728

3,146,041 1,191,728



!R !R

!R !R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R !R

!R !R
!R

!R

!R

!R !R !R

!R
!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R !R

!R !R

!R

!R

!R

!R !R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!R

!? !?!? !?

!?

!?!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?

!?!?!?

!?!?
!? !?

!?

!?

!?!? !?!?
!?

!? !?!?

!?

!?!? !?

!? !? !? !?

!? !?

!? !?

!?

!?

!?

MOO RHEAD
AVE

1481/2
AVE

N E

6TH
ST

10TH ST

9TH ST

MADISON ST

8TH ST

7TH ST

MA
RK

ET
 AV

E

MO
RR

IS
ON

ST

HE
LE

N 
ST

148TH AVE

NE
JA

HR
 ST

4TH ST

HELEN
ST

2ND ST

BROADWAY AVE

11TH ST

8TH ST

5TH ST NE

SIBLEY ST

4TH ST

3RD ST

6TH ST

FARGO AVE

5TH ST

GRAND
FO RK S

A VE

STATE ST

6TH ST

AR
NO

LD
AV

E

")16

¬«18

Created By:  TJS       Date Created:  05/11/21      Date Saved:  05/24/21        Date Exported:  05/24/21
Plotted By: Tanner.Schmidt        Parcel Date:  N/A       Aerial Image:  2020 County NAIP SIDS        Elevation Data: N/A
Horizontal Datum: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota North FIPS 3301 Feet        Vertical Datum:  NAVD1988
T:\Projects\21000\21083\21083_Water_Gate_Valves.mxd

PROPOSED WATER SYSTEM GATE VALVES
TRAILL COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

Legend
!? Proposed Gate Valves
!? Existing Gate Valve
!R Existing Fire Hydrant

Existing Water Main

0 600300
Feet

1 in = 600 feet

Attachment 3E.3







Attachment 5B





















�� � �

����������	� 
�����������	���������������������������� �!�"#�$�%��&���'()��*+,�-!�%.%�%/�.$���&��012-�3�4�5/67./.�7���&��8�93�4�5/67./.�77��&���)�:;�:<����

�=>?>@AB�=CDE>BD?>F�GH@�IHJ�KHLMB>J>E�N�OADP>@�HG�O>BBF��QHBDRS�=HABT��UV��W�X�V�Y�Z����[\]̂_�X�̀�a�bb__�\�cWY[ad�_��V�X��]�e�V�f��_��X\�g�hhh��\��̂X��\�g��\]�hhh�iX�b��\���V��]���̀�ib�\�g�iX�]̂���\g��\]�̂�̀j���\�����V��_����k_�\��̂X�̀�X�_�̂X��_�����̀��\]���_�\��V��_�����\�_̂�V���b�\\�X��_�è̀�iX���\��e�_��hf�UV��a�bb__�\�_�iX�b̂ �̀��\���V_���̀�l����iX���\��e�_��h��W�X�V�Y�Z����a�\�̂Xl�a�]��m��n��n��	�c�d�c�d��\]�W�X�V�Y�Z����o]b\_�X�����a�]��cWYoad�m�	��������pp�c�d�]��\��eV�����\_��̂��_��q�\]�\b�\�������e�̀̀��\]��V���i�X���Xk_��q̀����\����ì̂ ��_̂�V���e�̀̀��\]�X��̀�b��_�_��h��WYoa�m�	��������pp�c�d��̀̀�e_��V��YX����X���������V���i�X���X�����\��q�\]�\�]�e�̀̀�_̂����\���b����V�X����X�_��X��iX�]̂���\��X�ì̂ ���\]�X��̀�b��V��e�̀̀h��UV_���̀�l�]��_�\��V\������V�\����V���r_�\����r���X��iì����\����WYoa�m�	��������pp�c�d������e�̀̀�eV�V�V�_�iX���̂_̀l�iX�]̂��]��̀��X���_h��WYoa�m�	��������pp�c�d��̀̀�e_��V��YX����X�����̀b\�����V��e�_���eV�V�e�̂ ]̀���V�Xe_�����̂X�ql��iì����\����WYoa�m�	��������pp�c�d����V�Xj�\��̀�s�ZZ�\�e�̀̀_���X�eV�V���bì���\_�V����q��\�]���XX�]h��tuv�wx�vywzv{v|}�|x~��x{{x��w}��z��v��zv�u|w���������������|���z��������x{v�x�vz�wxz�����v�x�wv��wx��x�w�x�v��x{�|vw�x��x�vz�w�x���u�w�|�x�|��z��v��zv�xu�������v�t�zv�wxz����u��v|��v���x�w���v���vzv���xuw|��v�w�v��zx�v�uzv��v�v���z}�wx��zxwv�w�w�v�v���zx�{v�w������xzzv|�w��v�z���w������~����uw�xz��v���}�w�v��x{{����x��x����z����������������v�zv|�v���z��wv�����||�vy��zv�x��w�v���wv�w�v��xzw��t��xw��tv��zw{v�w�x���z����xzw�w�x��|��w��w�v��w�wv�����~�}�|x���|�{�w�zv�wz��w�x���������������xw��x{�|vwv��������vz��������w�wu��{�}�x�|}��v����v��wx�~v||��w��w����v��vv���z�||v���uw�~�x�v�������������xw�}vw��vv���vz�xz�wv�����v��w�v�~v||�����������|v�x���zx�u�����x�|�xz������v��u�v��x{�|vw�x��x�vz�w�x������v��xw�}vw��vv���vz�xz{v���������Q@HMHF>E�IKO��MM@HPAB�Q@HR>EC@>���� oh�UV���i�X���X�b̂ _��_̂qb���� ̂\]Xl�W�����\��\�����X�¡̂�_����e���X����ì̂ ���\]�X��̀�b��\��q�\]�\�]�e�̀̀�îX_̂�\�����WYoa�m�	��������pp�c�dh��UV��X�¡̂�_��b̂ _��\�̀̂]�¢��� � �h�o��̂XX�\��e�̀̀�q�X��_�V�b�����V���]�\���_��V��]b�\_�\_��\]�]�i�V_������_\�g��̂q\�g�̀\�Xc_d��\]��X���_�X\��\_��̀̀�]�\��V��e�̀̀£���bì���\�]�_�\���X��V��e�̀̀£��li���\]�]�\_�l�����̀̀��̀̂]_�\��V��e�̀̀�\��V��\��Xb�]������_\���\]��X���_�X\�£��\]�e�̀̀V��]��¡̂ib�\�h��� � �h�Y��̂b�\����\��V�����_̂���__�̂̀�iX�__̂X����_��e�_�i�X��Xb�]�eV�V��]�¡̂���̀l���_��]��V��\���X�l�����V��\��Xb�]������_\���\]�i��Z�X��̀�b�\��̂�̀j�]����_�̀�����V��\��Xb�]������_\��iX�]̂���\�̀\�X��\\̂`̂_��X�b��V��\��Xb�]������_\�������

Attachment 6



�� � �

����������	� 
�����������	������������������������������ �!"�#�$��%���&'(��)*+�, �$-$�$.�-#���%��/01,�2�3�4.56-.-�6���%��7�82�3�4.56-.-�66��%���(�9:�9;����

<=<><�?@�AA>@������=���B�>A�=C�����B>=C@�C�?�>=CA�?�@�AD>�@��=�B�EF�G�	��HI�?�A��IAJ���>��K��L����A>���AA�>I�?@�AA>@����A��A�>=�MI�����M��?�@��@<�CG��B��A>MN����O�II�<�P�M����=AC�@�C���@�QRQS�A���>A�?>@A>�=�����T�=�@�I�T>C�I=�A���@�U>A?�=A�=����S@II=��V�IIAK���� � �K�S��><�=����=��B�����A>���AA�>I�=�������?@�AA>@����A������B��?@�C>���=�I=�@�O�A�?�@��@<�CK�QB��?@�AA>@��<>A��B����M��=�MI�C������=C����I�O��B��H�?�@��@<�CK�L��=���I�O�O�A��MA�@��C��B��=���@�P�����B��I=�@�M�I�O��B��I=�@�B�=��@�OII�M����=AC�@�C�?@���=K��� � 	K�R���<�=�����I>���=�I����@��B��=��@<�C������A=����<�=�=��N�M�@�?�@�K��L=��CC��=G�����I=�@�O�A�@>=��=C���<�=��CG��B��I=�@���<�=��@�?�@��<>A��M���I�CK��� � WK�U����<�=���B���O�IIB��C��D>?<�=����<?I�A�O�B�XSRY�ZZ�	���������[��=C��	���������\K��� � ]K��@�?�A�C�?@���C>@�����?�@��@<���XSLY�O�=�AA�C�A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A���=��B��A>@�������A=�G��B��=��@<�C������A=���=C��@���A�@=�K��_?�@���@�<>A��=���P��B��XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@�	[�B�>@A�?@�@����?�@��@<=����A�K��L��?@�AA>@��A�?@�A�=�G��B���?�@���@�<>A��@�I�����B��?@�AA>@���=C�=A��II���>��AK�QB���?�@���@�<>A��@���B��H��B��?@�AA>@����>��A�O�B=�	[�B�>@A���@�?@�AA>@��M>IC>?K��� aK�QB��XSLY�̀ �IC�L=A?����@�AB�>IC�O�=�AA��=C�C��><�=���B��=��I�A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A��=��B��C���M�A���=C�=���P��B��aA<�@�H�����������<�I������I�C���A�AK��QB���?�@���@�A�@�D>@�C�����I����A>=C@P�=�����@�?�@�=���B��O�@H�C�=�K��� YK�R��I��@���O�<>A��M��?�@��@<�C�MP��B��XSLYK���bc�defghiehjk�lhmnok�np�qrs�tonuhveohg���� RK�QB���?�@���@�<>A��A>M<����@��??@���I���A>MA�D>�=��@�?�@������B��XYV�?@���C>@�A��=C�@�D>�A����@���O���@����?I>���=C�@��I�<��=��M�=C�=�C�O�II�?>@A>�=�����XSRY�Z��	��������WW�w�x�M�=��A>@�����=�I>C��C�����=C�@�A>I�A������I�O���A�K��� aK�
=A>@��XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@�O�A�?@�?�@IP�=����C����A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A�K��� YK�XYV�A���>A��??@���C���@��=��P��@K�QB��C@����@�<�P��y��=C���O�IIzA�XYV�A���>A�M�P�=C��=��P��@K��� SK�R��I��@���O�<>A��M��?�@��@<�CK���{c�qrs�|}khjg~nj�lhie~oh�hjkg���� RK�QB���?�@���@�<>A��A>M<����@��??@���I��=��==>�I�@�D>�A������y��=C��B��XYV�A���>AK�QB��C@����@�<�P��y��=C���O�IIzA�XYV�A���>A�M�P�=C��=��P��@K��R=��==>�I�A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A��AB�>IC�M��O�=�AA�C�MP���XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@K��QB���?�@���@�<>A��=���P��B��XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@�	[�B�>@A�?@�@����?�@��@<=����A�K��L��?@�AA>@��A�?@�A�=�G��B���?�@���@�<>A��@�I�����B��?@�AA>@���=C�=A��II���>��AK��QB���?�@���@�<>A��@���B��H��B��?@�AA>@����>��A�O�B=�	[�B�>@A���@�?@�AA>@��M>IC>?K��� aK�QB��XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@�<>A��O�=�AA��=C�C��><�=���B���==>�I�A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A��=��B��C���M�A���=C�=���P��B��aA<�@�H�����������<�I������I�C���A�AK��� YK�S��><�=����=����D>�@��@IP�=A?����=A��=C�A>@�����?@�AA>@�̂�I�O���A�A�O�B�@�A>I�AK��L��=��A>�B���A�A�O�@��?�@��@<�CG��B���AB�>IC�M��=C����C��IA�K��_?�@���@�<>A��?@��C���B��=�<������B��XSLY�̀�IC�L=A?����@��=C�C����=����C����>=O�=�AA�C��I�O���A�AK��� SK�R��I��@���O�<>A��M��?�@��@<�CK�



�� � �

����������	� 
�����������	������������������������������ �!"�#�$��%���&'(��)*+�, �$-$�$.�-#���%��/01,�2�3�4.56-.-�6���%��7�82�3�4.56-.-�66��%���(�9:�9;����

��<=�>?@ABCDEF?@�G�HF?EDFIE?J�KBLMEIBNB?D@���� OP�QR��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�̂_[��̀�Z�[[��ZY�Y��_̂ �Z���R��Z��X�[_]�����\]�[[_]�a�X�̀���[��Z��R��Y���b�[���ZY�Z���c��R��d[̂�]�e�����������̂�X������X�Y���[�[P��� dP�f�XX�̂_[��b��Z[\����Y�bc��R���\�]���]����X��[���Z���\�]�g_�]��]���]�\]�[[_]���]�X��e�����Z��R��[_]�������[Z�h��R��Z��]̂�Y������[Z���ZY��]���[�]Z���ZY���ZY_����YY��Z�X��̂Z��]Z��Y_]Z�����[����]���_]���\�]���Z[P��U��\]�[[_]��[�\]�[�Z�h��R���\�]���]�̂_[��Z���c��R��STUV�̂ �̂Y���Xch�]�X�����R��\]�[[_]���ZY�Z[��XX���_��[P�QR���\�]���]�_̂[��]���R��e��R��\]�[[_]����_��[�̀�RZ�	i�R�_][���]�\]�[[_]��b_XY_\P�U���R��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�[�_Z�bX�����̀�Z�[[��R����[�h��R���\�]���]�̂_[��Z���c��R��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�����R��]�[_X�[�����R����[���ZY��R��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�̀XX�Y��_̂ �Z���R��]�[_X�[�Z��R��Y���b�[�P��U���R��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�̀�Z�[[�[��R��[_]�����\]�[[_]�a�X�̀���[�h���[R�_XY�b��Y��_̂ �Z��Y�Z��R��Y���b�[���ZY��R��d[̂�]�e�������Z����Y�����̂�X������X�Y���[�[P��S�����R���\�]���]�̂_[��]�\�]���R��]�[_X�[��ZY��R��]�[\������Z[\����Z�Y���[��]�̂ ��R��Z[\����Z[��ZY��X�̀���[�[��Z��Zc�]�g_�[������j��ZY��R��SVf�[���_[P��� VP�k\�]���]�̂_[��\�]��]̂��Z��ZZ_�X�STUV�̀�Z�[[�Y�[_]�����\]�[[_]�a�X�̀���[���Z��R��[_]�������[Z�h��R��Z��]̂�Y������[Z���ZY��]���[�]Z�P��k\�]���]�̂_[��Z���c��R��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�	i�R�_][�\]�]����\�]��]̂Z����[�P��U��\]�[[_]��[�\]�[�Z�h��R���\�]���]�_̂[��]�X�����R��\]�[[_]���ZY�Z[��XX���_��[P��QR���\�]���]�̂_[��]���R��e��R��\]�[[_]����_��[�̀�RZ�	i�R�_][���]�\]�[[_]��b_XY_\P��� TP�QR��STUV�W�XY�UZ[\����]�̂_[��̀�Z�[[��ZY�Y��_̂ �Z���R���ZZ_�X�[_]�����\]�[[_]�a�X�̀���[��Z��R��Y���b�[���ZY�Z���c��R��d[̂�]�e�����������̂�X������X�Y���[�[P��� 
P�OZc�\]�[[_]���]�X��e����Y[����]�Y�bc��R���\�]���]�̂_[��b��]�\�]��Y�����R��STUV�̂ �̂Y���XcP���l=�KBmFCnDEF?�Fo�pqr�sDnDM@���� OP�W�X_]�����[_]�����\]�[[_]�a�X�̀���[�P��� d�W�X[�Z[\����Z��ZY�̂�Z��]Z��]�g_]�̂�Z�[�Z�\�]��	��b���P��� VP�t��[�Z���]�SVf�Z��X�Z��]���XYP��� TP�V�Z[Y�]���Z����̂Z�]�XaX�ZY�̀Z�]aSTUV�uZ�X_YZ����XY�Z[\����]v���Z��]Z[P���w=�xCCB@@�DF�rByy�sEDB@���� t��[�Z�bX������[[����SVf�̀�XX�[��[�̂_[��b��̂�Z��Z�YP���z=�{D|BI���� � }\�Z�Z������]�̂ ��R��STUV��R�����̀�XX�Y]XX�Y��Z���̂_X��̀�XX�\�Y�R�[�̂����R��Y��Z��Z����̀R�����Z[��_��[��b�ZY�Ẑ �Z������R��̀�XXh��R���\�]���]�̂�c��\\Xc���]��YY��Z�X��̂������b��Z�SVf��]�QOQT�[���_[�bc�Y��_̂ �Z�Z���R��Y�����R������R�̀�XX�Y]XX�Y��Z��R��̂_X��̀�XX�\�Y�Y_]Z����Z�Z_�_[�Y]XXZ���\�]���Z[�]���R�Y�����X�Y�\�RP�QR��V�̂ ̂[[�Z�̂�c��]�Z���Z��j��Z[�Z�����R��S���V�̂ \X���Y�uSVv�̀�XX�[���_[�����Z��c��]���XX�̀Z���R��Y�����R��X�[��̀�XX�Y]XX�Y��Z��R��̂_X��̀�XX�\�Y�Y_]Z����Z�Z_�_[�Y]XXZ���\�]���Z[�]���R�Y�����X�Y�\�RP�



�� � �

������������ 	���
�������������������������������������� �!"�#�$��%���&'(��)*+�, �$-$�$.�-#���%��/01,�2�3�4.56-.-�6���%��7�82�3�4.56-.-�66��%���(�9:�9;����

��<=>?@�AB?�C=D?E=FGE�HD?�EIFJ?KFG?L�=GKM�HGJ�NHM�O?�HK>?D?J�C=D�E==J�PHIL?�>=�N??>�LQ?PFCFP�P=GJF>F=GLR��STUTVTWXT���� STYZ[VT\TW]̂�_U�̀abc�d�efghighfgjj���� kl�mno�poqrstu�rv�wprxyz{|r}�o~y|wqo}{�rp�{no�vt|uypo�{r�wprxyzo�r|u�rp��t���rp�{no�poqrstu�rv�wprxyz{|r}�o~y|wqo}{�rp�{no�vt|uypo�{r�wprxyzo��t{op�vprq�t��rypzo��ouu��vrp�r}o��otp�zr}�{|{y{o��t�t}xr}qo}{�rv�{no��ouul�mno�poqrstu�rv�|}�oz{|r}�o~y|wqo}{�rp�{no�vt|uypo�{r�y�o�t}�|}�oz{|r}��ouu�vrp�r}o��otp�zr}�{|{y{o��t�t}xr}qo}{�rv�{no��ouul�mno�vt|uypo�{r�wuy��t��{pt{|�ptwn|z�{o�{�nruo��|{n|}�r}o��otp�rv�potzn|}��{r{tu�xow{n�zr}�{|{y{o��t�t}xr}qo}{�rv�{no��ouul�mno�poqrstu�rv�{pot{|}��wut}{�o~y|wqo}{�rp�{no�vt|uypo�{r�y�o�t�{pot{|}��wut}{�vrp�r}o��otp�zr}�{|{y{o��t�t}xr}qo}{�rv�{no�{pot{|}��wut}{l��}�t�t}xr}ox��ouu�qy�{��o�wuy��ox�t}x�|{���|{o�qy�{��o�pozut|qox�t}x�t}�t�t}xr}ox�{pot{|}��wut}{�qy�{��o�poqrsox�t}x�|{���|{o�qy�{��o�pozut|qox��wyp�yt}{�{r��oz{|r}��������������t}x������������l�kl���� �l�lll{no�x|poz{rp�qt��tu�r��t|so�{no�xy{��{r�wuy��t}x�pozut|q�t}�t�t}xr}ox��ouu�vrp�t}��r{nop��rrx�zty�o�vry}x����{no�x|poz{rpl��v�{no�x|poz{rp�o�opz|�o��{n|��x|�zpo{|r}��{no�x|poz{rp��ntuu��o{�t�xt{o�rp�z|pzyq�{t}zo�ywr}��n|zn�{no��t|sop�o�w|po�l��



� �

������������	
����
	����	������������������������������������ !��"�#�$�%&����&����'�("�#�$�%&����&&�����)*)+�
,���+���

� -.//�-012.3�4516078.�90:.;�<=31/�>?�@A@A�� �BCD�:C�E5FG1:�0�3.H5.E:�:I3C5JI�KC3:ILM<N�O�-I0:�E5763P�:P=.E�:C�3.H5.E:;��� QR�N.21.D�J516./17.E�C7/17.�SC3�0//�3.H513.G.7:E�7..6.6�:C�F.�G.:�076�6C85G.7:0:1C7�:I0:�D1//�7..6�:C�F.�E5FG1::.6�D1:I�PC53�D.//�D012.3T�4516./17.E�03.�E02.6�17�:I.�4516078.�076�UC/18P�E.8:1C7T�VWXXYZ[\\]]]̂_̀ âb_̂cde\dfgchZ\YdgfifjẐhZYk�� lm�nopp�qrstou�uovwoxyx�ruo�yz�{o�xw{|syyo}�y~uzw�~�y~o��oq��zuy~�����}ryr{rxom��ps���~ouo��zu�|zuo�s��zu|rysz��s���zw�ruo��oq�yz��zuy~����m�����������������������������������������������������otsoq��ws}ops�ox�z�ps�o��zu�rpp�uovwsuo|o�yx��oo}o}�yz�{o�|oy�r�}�}z�w|o�yrysz��y~ry�qspp��oo}�yz�{o�xw{|syyo}�qsy~��zwu�qopp�qrstoum��ws}ops�ox�ruo�xrto}�s��y~o��ws}r��o�r�}��zps���xo�ysz�m�� ¡¡¢£¤¥¥¦¦¦§̈©ª§«̈§¬®¥̄°¬±£¥¢°̄²̄³£§±£¢́����~o�zµouryzu�|wxy�xw{|sy�r��w�}u���zys�o�s�yo�y�yz�uovwoxy�r�qrstou�yz�µpw��r�}�uo�prs|�r��r{r�}z�o}�qopp�µwuxwr�y�yz��¶���·�̧¹º»lº»¹º¼¼��ruy��¹½m���¾zw�qspp��oo}�yz�xw{|sy�r�¿ÀÁÂÃÄ�ÅÆÃÇ�r�}��~zzxo�y~o��zppzqs���s���yoµ�ÈÉ�Ê�Ër�spsy����µoÉ�nopp�Ê��w�}u����µoÉ��zys�s�rysz��z��nzu���ou�zu|o}�Ê��ryo�zu�É�nopp�Ìµourysz�x�Ê���µo�z��nzu�É�nopp��yrywx�Íµ}ryo�Ê�¶ox�usµysz�É��ovwoxys���ÎÏ��Ð���n�ÏÑÐ����ÒÐÓ��zu�nopp�ÎÏ��Ð���ËÏÔÐ�ÕÓ���Ð�xwuo�rpp�µuzµou�}z�w|o�yrysz��rx�zwyps�o}�s��y~o��ws}r��o�}z�w|o�yx�sx�s��pw}o}�r�}�uovwsuo|o�yx�~rto�{oo��|oym���Ì��s�srp��ws}r��o�}z�w|o�yx�ruo�s��y~o��zps�sox�r�}��ws}r��o�xo�ysz��ry�qqqm}|um�}m�ztÖzsp�rx���×ØÙ���Ù�����Ú�Û������Ü������������Ù����otsoq��ws}ops�ox�z�ps�o��zu�rpp�uovwsuo|o�yx��oo}o}�yz�{o�|oy�r�}�}z�w|o�yrysz��y~ry�qspp��oo}�yz�{o�xw{|syyo}�qsy~��zwu�qopp�qrstoum��ws}ops�ox�ruo�xrto}�s��y~o��ws}r��o�r�}��zps���xo�ysz�m�� ¡¡¢£¤¥¥¦¦¦§̈©ª§«̈§¬®¥̄°¬±£¥¢°̄²̄³£§±£¢́���¾zw�qspp��oo}�yz�xw{|sy�r�¿ÀÁÂÃÄ�ÅÆÃÇ�r�}��~zzxo�y~o��zppzqs���s���yoµ�ÈÉ�Ê��w�}u����µoÉ��ovwoxy��zu��z�xs}ourysz�Önrstou�Ê��ryo�zu�É�nopp�Ìµourysz�x�Ê���µo�z��nzu�É��wxµo�xsz��z��¶uspps�����Ð�xwuo�rpp�µuzµou�}z�w|o�yrysz��rx�zwyps�o}�s��y~o��ws}r��o�}z�w|o�yx�sx�s��pw}o}�r�}�uovwsuo|o�yx�~rto�{oo��|oym���Ì��s�srp��ws}r��o�}z�w|o�yx�ruo�s��y~o��zps�sox�r�}��ws}r��o�xo�ysz��ry�qqqm}|um�}m�ztÖzsp�rx��

Attachment 6A



� �

������������	
����
	����	������������������������������������ !��"�#�$�%&����&����'�("�#�$�%&����&&�����)*)+�
,���+���

�-./0.�10�2345/11/67�8�.9:3921�;0.�86<�=9>>�=8/?9.2�@>9829�A062/B9.�1C9�;0>>0=/67D�EF�GFH�IJKLMN�O�PQRJQIN�STP�O�UVWXYZW[\Z�\]�̂_[̀̀[Za�bUĉ d�eỲ̀�ef[gY_�MSh�i�jTklJmNTP�TP�nJPSOmQ�mOIMko�pMqq�KQ�TP�rOsQ�KQQk�IQN�STP�qQII�NrOk�tu�lOvIw��EF�GFH�IJKLMN�O�PQRJQIN�STP�O�UVWXYZW[\Z�\]�̂_[̀̀[Za�xyzYZW[\Z�bUĉ d�eỲ̀�ef[gY_�MSh�i�{�nFE�pOI�oPOkNQl|�Okl�NrQ�OqqTNNQl�NMLQSPOLQ�}MwQw�~u�lOvI��rOI�kTN�Q��MPQlw����EF�GFH�IJKLMN�O�PQRJQIN�STP�O��Y�X\_f_[̀����fZ�\ZY���\Z�V�z\_�UV_]f�Y��fW[Za�b��U�d�eỲ̀�ef[gY_�MSh�i�HrQ�TkQ�vQOP�NMLQSPOLQ�SPTL�prQk�QMNrQP�mTklJmNTP�TP�IJPSOmQ�mOIMko�pOI�IQN�rOI�kTN�Q��MPQlw��EF�GFH�IJKLMN�O�PQRJQIN�STP�O��Y�X\_f_[̀����fZ�\ZY���_\�V�z[\Z��ZzY_�Y�[fzY��fW[Za�b���d�eỲ̀�ef[gY_�MSh�i�HrQ�nFE���NQkIMTk�rOI�kTN�Q��MPQlw��EF�GFH�IJKLMN�O�PQRJQIN�STP�O��Y�X\_f_[̀����fZ�\ZY���̂_[̀̀Y��z\��\zf̀�̂YXz��b���̂ d�eỲ̀�ef[gY_�MSh�i�HrQ�pQqq�PQOmrQl�NTNOq�lQ�Nr�qQII�NrOk�TkQ�vQOP�OoTw�������������������������� ���¡�������������¢�������£����¤����¤������¥�����¦�§����̈� ���¡�©���¦�����������ª«¬®̄°°«̄«����£���¢�� ������ ��¡±������²�¡³±��³�



1

Pipeline Capacity Discussion

Justin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority

Image: Library of Congress 

April 24, 2025

Major Residue Gas Pipeline Infrastructure

WBI Transmission

Marathon

O
N

E
O

K

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline AuthorityJustin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 2

WBI Storage Field

Attachment 7



2

Residue Gas Pipeline Capacity Visualization

WBI Transmission

Marathon

O
N

E
O

K

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline AuthorityJJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 3

WBI Energy: Proposed Bakken East Project

Justin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 4

Natural Gas Pipeline Project Highlights

• Non-binding open season Dec 16 – Jan 31, 2025

• 375 Miles: 30” & 24” Pipe

• Proposed Capacity 760,000 Dth/Day 

• Phase 1 (West) : Nov 2028 targeted in-service

• Phase 2 (East) : Nov 2029 targeted in-service

• Seeking commitments 20yrs or Longer

Estimated Rates

• $0.85 to $0.90/Dth + Fuel/Electric/Commodity 

• Anchor Shipper Minimum: 100,000 Dth/Day

• Foundation Shipper Minimum: 250,000 Dth/Day



3

Intensity Infrastructure Partners Proposed Pipeline

Justin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 5

Phase 1 Project Highlights

• Non-binding open season Feb 3 – Mar 7, 2025

• 136 Miles: 42” Pipe

• Proposed Capacity 1,500,000 Dth/Day 

• January 2028 targeted in-service

• Seeking commitments 10yrs or Longer

Phase 1 Estimated Rates

• $0.50/Dth + Fuel/Electric/Commodity 

• Anchor Shipper Minimum: 100,000 Dth/Day

• Foundation Shipper Minimum: 250,000 Dth/Day

Phase 2 Project Highlights

• Non-binding open season Apr 17 – May 23, 2025

• 208 Miles: 30” Pipe

• Proposed Capacity 430,000 Dth/Day 

• January 2030 targeted in-service

• Seeking commitments 10yrs or Longer

Phase 2 Estimated Rates

• $0.80/Dth + Fuel/Electric/Commodity 

• Anchor Shipper Minimum: 100,000 Dth/Day

• Foundation Shipper Minimum: 250,000 Dth/Day

Marathon

O
N

E
O

K

WBI Storage Field

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline AuthorityJustin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 6

Firm Transportation Project Highlights

• Non-binding open season Apr 21 – May 20, 2025

• Pipeline expansion: 72,000 Dth/Day 

• Oct 2029 targeted in-service

• Seeking commitments 15yrs or longer

• Pipe looping and new/upgraded compression

Estimated Rates (+Fuel/Elec/Commodity)

• Capacity reservation: $0.58156/Dth

Storage Project Highlights

• Non-binding open season Apr 21 – May 20, 2025

• Deliverability expansion: 72,000 Dth/Day

• Up to ~10 BCF total of new seasonal service

• Oct 2029 targeted in-service

• Seeking commitments 15yrs or longer

Estimated Rates (+Fuel/Elec/Commodity)

• Capacity reservation: $0.002113/Day

• Deliverability reservation: $0.31901/Day

• Injection charge:$0.00959/Dth

• Withdrawal charge: $0.00959/Dth

WBI Energy Open Season: Storage/Pipe Enhancement

WBI: Proposed Bakken East



4

Going East: Statewide Benefits of Interconnections

Justin J. Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 7

Driving Forces for New Gas Pipelines

8
8JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 8

Supply Push

Demand Pull

System 
Reliability/Security



5

Who Signs Up For Capacity?

9
9JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 9

Producers/Midstream

Marketing Firms

Industrial Consumers/LDC

State of North Dakota (PA/IC)

S
h
ip

p
e

rs

10

Stages of Gas Pipeline Development

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 10

Needs Analysis
(Up to 2+ Years)

High Level Route 
Considerations

Detailed Corridor Analysis 
& Cost Estimates

Non-Binding 
Solicitations of Interest

Binding Commitments 
and/or Open Season

Evaluate Results of Open 
Season & Commitments

R.O.W. Fieldwork and 
Landowner Contacts

Formal Regulatory Process 
Begins (3+ years)

Needs Analysis
(Up to 2+ Years)

Non-Binding 
Solicitations of Interest

Current Phase: 1H 2025

2H 2025: 

System In-Service

Late 2029-Early 2030



6

11

Pipeline Authority Century Code– 54-17.7-04.

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 11

Key Terms

12JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 12

• Holds contractual rights to transport natural gas on a pipeline system
between two or more pipeline points.Shipper

• One of a few, large volume, long duration shippers supporting a new
or expanding pipeline system.Anchor Shipper

• Contractual arrangement where one party agrees to manage gas
marketing obligations for another party.

Asset Management 
Arrangement (AMA)

• Method for firm transportation capacity holders to resell all, or a
portion, of their capacity to a third party on a short- or long-term basis.Capacity Release

• Formal documentation outlining a pipeline provider’s transportation
services, rates, terms, and conditions.Tariff



7

Key Terms (Continued)

13JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 13

• Formal event where a pipeline operator solicits interest from potential shippers for a
new or expanding project. No binding commitments required.

Non-Binding Open 
Season

• Formal solicitation of interest by a pipeline operator to secure contractual take or pay
commitments from customers to use a new or expanding pipeline system.Binding Open Season

• AKA “demand charge”. Fee paid to reserve space on a gas pipeline based on
contract specifications. Paid whether or not gas is transported.Reservation Rate

• AKA “dry gas”.  Consumer ready natural gas exiting the tailgate of a gas processing 
facility that has been stripped of heavier natural gas liquids. Mostly comprised of
methane and some ethane.  BTU is typically 1,010 to 1,200 in North Dakota.

Residue Gas

• 1 MCF = 1 MMBTU = 1 Dekatherm (Dth) @ 1,000 btu

• 1,150 btu “Bakken”: 1 MCF = 1.15 MMBTU = 1.15 DthGas Units

Firm Gas Transport Rate Breakdown

14
14JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 14

• Fixed charge for firm shippers based on maximum daily 
contracted quantity.  Must be paid for the duration of contract 
term regardless if gas moves or not. 

• Units = $/Dekatherm

Reservation 
Charge

• Charges for physical gas transported. 

• Units = $/Dekatherm

Commodity 
Charge

• Charges for fuel used to operator system compressors and 
ancillary equipment. 

• Typically expressed as a percentage of gas transported and/or 
$/Dekatherm. 

Fuel/Electric

Example Pipeline Case

Reservation: $0.37356

Commodity: $0.02546

Electric: $0.00567

Subtotal: $0.40469

Fuel: 1.147%

If gas value is $2.00/Dth

Fuel expense: $0.02294

Total Transport: 

$0.42763/Dth



8

15

Capacity and Reservation Rate

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 15

Example: Intensity & 

Bakken East Rates 

$0.80-0.90

16

Simple Example Case

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 16

• Total project: 400,000 Dth/Day (~333.3 MMCFD @ 1,200 btu)

• Private sector anchor shippers: 320,000 Dth/Day

• NDPA/NDIC is anchor shipper: 80,000 Dth/Day

• NDPA/NDIC Precedent Agreement @ $0.90 ($26.3 Million/Yr)

• Term timeline: 2029-2039

• Final project recourse rate $0.92 (AKA “Max Rate”)



9

17

How Will NDPA Manage Contracted Capacity?

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 17

Release capacity to replacement shipper(s) 
in increments greater than one year at max 
rate

Release capacity to replacement shipper(s) 
in increments less than one year at bid 
rates (Limited by 54-17.7-04 Subsection 3)

Release of capacity to an asset manager for 
an appropriate term length

Pay obligated precedent agreement rates 
until a release or asset management 
agreement is established

Most 
Desirable

Least 
Desirable

Capacity Release Term Considerations

18JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 18

31 Days or 
Less

FERC permitted with 
certain criteria

Forbidden under 
NDCC 54-17.7-04 
Subsection 3 

32 Days to 1 
Year

Any rate (NDCC 
Restrictions)

Bidding required

AMA allowed without 
bidding

Rollovers allowed

Greater than 
1 year

Max tariff rate only

No bidding required

AMA allowed without 
bidding

Rollovers allowed at 
max rate only

Summarized from 18 CFR § 284.8



10

19

Example Capacity Release Scenarios

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 19

• New gas pipeline requiring 10 year anchor shipper terms
• Party A: 3 year position (Years 1-3)
• State of ND: 7 year position (Years 4-10)
• State of ND has a prearranged agreement in place with Party A to

release 13 month intervals of capacity at max rate with rollover (ROFR)
rights to continue in 13 month intervals at max rate until term expires at
year 10.

• May require similar arrangements with Parties B/C/… to release entire
capacity position

• New gas pipeline requiring 10 year anchor shipper terms
• State of ND: 10 year position
• ND has a prearranged agreement in place with Party A to release 13

month intervals of capacity at max rate with rollover (ROFR) rights to
continue in 13 month blocks at max rate until term expires at year 10.

• May require similar arrangements with Parties B/C/… to release entire
capacity position

20JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 20

Regional Natural Gas Storage



11

Residue Gas Storage – WBI Energy*

21JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 21*WBI Energy Storage Fields: Baker & Elk Basin

Justin J. Kringstad, Director
North Dakota Pipeline Authority

600 E. Boulevard Ave. Dept. 405
Bismarck, ND 58505-0840

Phone: (701)220-6227
Fax: (701)328-2820

E-mail: jjkringstad@ndpipelines.com

Websites: 
www.pipeline.nd.gov

www.northdakotapipelines.com 

Contact Information

JJ Kringstad - North Dakota Pipeline Authority 22

http://www.pipeline.nd.gov/
http://www.ndpipelines.wordpress.com/

	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6: Driving Forces for New Gas Pipelines
	Slide 7: Who Signs Up For Capacity?
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: Key Terms
	Slide 11: Key Terms (Continued)
	Slide 12: Firm Gas Transport Rate Breakdown
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: Capacity Release Term Considerations
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19: Residue Gas Storage – WBI Energy*
	Slide 20
	ADPCEE6.tmp
	Thursday, April 24, 2025

	Attachment 2F Mandan DW WTP Phase III Location Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	001 COLLINS RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT
	001 PHASE III OPTIMIZATION


	Attachment 3B.3 Colfax CW Lift Station Map.pdf
	Pages from 4.1 Colfax CW Pre-application (3)-2.pdf
	Colfax CW Lift Station Map.pdf

	Attachment 3C.3 Colfax CW Reserve Map.pdf
	Pages from 4.1 Colfax CW Pre-application (4).pdf
	Colfax CW Reserve Map.pdf

	ADP715C.tmp
	Thursday, April 24, 2025

	UPDATED - Kringstad NDIC 4-24-25 Two Slides Per Page.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Driving Forces for New Gas Pipelines
	Slide 9: Who Signs Up For Capacity?
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: Key Terms
	Slide 13: Key Terms (Continued)
	Slide 14: Firm Gas Transport Rate Breakdown
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18: Capacity Release Term Considerations
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: Residue Gas Storage – WBI Energy*
	Slide 22




